
 

 

 
 
 
 

Cabinet 
 
Wednesday 11 July 2012 at 2.00 pm 
 
Town Hall, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillor Julie Dore Chair/Leader of the Council 
Councillor Harry Harpham Deputy Leader/Homes & Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Isobel Bowler Culture, Sport & Leisure 
Councillor Leigh Bramall Business, SKills & Development 
Councillor Jackie Drayton Children, Young People & Families 
Councillor Mazher Iqbal Communities & Inclusion 
Councillor Mary Lea Health, Care & Independent Living 
Councillor Bryan Lodge Finance & Resources 
Councillor Jack Scott Environment, Waste & Streetscene 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Cabinet discusses and takes decisions on the most significant issues facing the 
City Council.  These include issues about the direction of the Council, its policies and 
strategies, as well as city-wide decisions and those which affect more than one 
Council service.  Meetings are chaired by the Leader of the Council, Councillor Julie 
Dore.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday, or you can ring on telephone no. 2734552.  You 
may not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential 
information.  These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Cabinet 
meetings.  Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further 
information. 
 
Cabinet meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Cabinet may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room. 
 
Cabinet decisions are effective six working days after the meeting has taken place, 
unless called-in for scrutiny by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or referred to the 
City Council meeting, in which case the matter is normally resolved within the 
monthly cycle of meetings.  Further information on this or any of the agenda items 
can be obtained by speaking to John Challenger on 0114 273 4014. 
 
If you require any further information please contact committee@sheffield.gov.uk or 
call us on 0114 273 4014. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 



 

 

 

CABINET AGENDA 
11 JULY 2012 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

 
2. Apologies for Absence 

 
3. Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 

and public. 
 

4. Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting. 
 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 20th June, 

2012. 
 

6. Public Questions and Petitions 
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public. 

 
7. Items Called-In for Scrutiny 
 The Chief Executive will inform the Cabinet of any items called in for 

scrutiny since the last meeting of the Cabinet. 
 

8. Staff Retirements 
 

9. Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route (BRT North) : Approval for 
Compulsory Purchase Order Publication and Acquisition of Land 

 Report of the Executive Director, Place. 
 

10. Capital Programme Approvals 2012-13 (Month 1) 
 Report of the Executive Director, Resources. 

 
11. Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 
 Report of the Executive Director, Place. 

 
11 July  2012 
 NOTE: The next meeting of Cabinet will be held on Wednesday 1 

August 2012 at 2.00 pm 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
A new Standards regime was introduced on 1st July, 2012 by the Localism Act 2011.  
The new regime made changes to the way that your interests needed to be 
registered and declared.  Prejudicial and personal interests no longer exist and they 
have been replaced by Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs). 
 
The Act also required that provision is made for interests which are not Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and required the Council to introduce a new local Code of 
Conduct for Members.  Provision has been made in the new Code for dealing with 
“personal” interests. 
 
Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously, and has been published on the Council’s website as a downloadable 
document at -http://councillors.sheffield.gov.uk/councillors/register-of-councillors-
interests 
 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before 
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take. 
 
Further advice can be obtained from Lynne Bird, Director of Legal Services on 0114 
2734018 or email lynne.bird@sheffield.gov.uk 
 



 
 

SH E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

CABINET 
 

Meeting held 20th June,  2012 
  
  
PRESENT: Councillors Julie Dore (Chair), Harry Harpham, Isobel Bowler, Leigh 

Bramall, Jackie Drayton, Mazher Iqbal, Mary Lea, Bryan Lodge and 
Jack Scott. 

 
%%%%%%.. 

  
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  
1.1 No apologies for absence were received.  
  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
 2.1 Councillor Jack Scott declared a prejudicial interest in item 7.1 of the minutes 

relating to Voluntary Sector Grant Fund Awards 2012-13 on the grounds that he 
was employed by Voluntary Action Sheffield and left the meeting during the 
consideration of the item.  

  
3. MINUTES  
  
3.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 23rd May 2012 were approved 

as a correct record.  
  
4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS  
  
4.1 Council Contracts with Private Companies 
  
4.1.1 Mr Nigel Slack asked the following questions concerning the contracts the 

Council had with private companies:-  
  
4.1.2 How many private companies currently have contracts with the City Council for 

the provision of 'Council' or 'Public' services? 
  
4.1.3 How much are these contracts worth per annum? 
  
4.1.4 What proportion of the Council's budget does this account for? 

  
4.1.5 Do these contracts define the level of profits the private companies are allowed 

to make? 

  
4.1.6 Do these contracts define the level of profits the private companies are allowed 

to make? 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 2 

 

  

4.1.7 If so, what are these defined profits? If not, why not? 

  
4.1.8 With reference to the sub-contracting of the Household Waste Recycling Centres 

contract, were there any other contracts held by private companies which are 
similarly sub-contracted?  

  
4.1.9 Councillor Bryan Lodge (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 

responded that, for the year 2012/2013, according to the Council’s internal 
contracts database, the Council had 537 contracts. Some of these contracts 
were framework agreements and, therefore, the number of companies that 
satisfied these contracts was approximately 700, the majority being private 
companies, a  small proportion of which, were charities or voluntary 
organisations) 

  
4.1.10 He added that the value of contracts for 2012/13 was approximately £730 million 

and that the Council’s budget for 2012/13 was £1.5 billion. Therefore, the 
percentage of the contracts, as a proportion of the Council budget, was 
approximately 49%.  

  
4.1.11 Strategic contracts possessed profit caps that varied depending on the nature of 

the contract. Within contracts that did not have a specific profit level cap, these 
were subject to competition to ensure value for money. (Satisfying public 
procurement regulations) The profit levels varied per contract depending on the 
nature of the contract. For example, the Capita contract had a profit cap of 10% 
and the Veolia contract had one of 11%.  

  
4.1.2 Councillor Lodge added that all sub-contract information is requested during the 

procurement process and that due diligence was carried out during the process. 
However, relationships are generally managed between the primary contractor 
and the sub - contractor. The Council’s relationships contractually sat with the 
primary contractor.  

  
4.2 Household Waste Recycling  
  
4.2.1 Mr Nigel Slack asked further questions relating to the Household Waste 

Recycling Service as follows:- 
  
4.2.2 In regards to the controversial sub-contracting of the Veolia contract for the 

provision of Household Waste Sites, what is the provision for profits for the sub-
contractor? 

  
4.2.3 Do Both Veolia and the sub-contractor take profits from the main contract profit 

element or is the sub-contractor allowed to derive additional profits after Veolia 
have taken their profit margin? 

  
4.2.4 Councillor Jack Scott (Cabinet Member for Environment, Recycling and 

Streetscene) responded that the contract between SOVA and Veolia was 
competitively tendered for in 2011 and the aim was to improve the service, 
achieving value for money for the Council and users of the Recycling Centres 
and, ultimately improve recycling rates.  No profits are earned by Veolia under 

Page 2



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 3 

 

  

the sub-contract. Any income earned by Veolia is achieved only by the sale of 
materials such as textiles or acid/lead batteries. The sub-contract allows SOVA 
to earn rewards based on performance risk in the agreement, which is primarily 
focussed on improving recycling rates, with the aim of minimising the  Council’s 
liability for Landfill Tax.   

  
4.2.5 Councillor Scott added that any additional income form the sale of recycled 

goods was shared on a 50:50 basis between the City Council and Veolia and this 
sharing ratio would be used under the Council’s contract with Veolia wherever 
the Council’s assets were used. Notwithstanding any of the above, the Council’s  
overriding objective was to improve the recycling of waste. 

  
4.2.6 Councillor Julie Dore (Leader) stated that from the Authority’s perspective, there 

was no implicit policy to contract out services and consideration of putting out 
services to contract would be made on a case by case basis. She added that the 
Council was also prepared to bring services back in-house where they thought 
this would improve services and evidence of this was the decision return of the 
management of the Council’s housing stock from Sheffield Homes to the 
Council. 

  
4.3 Hanover/Lansdowne Estate – Community Energy Saving Programme (CESP) 
  
4.3.1 Ms. Karen Greenhalgh  asked whether she could be supplied with a list and map 

showing those leaseholder properties on the Hanover/Lansdowne estate which 
were in the Community Energy Saving Programme (CESP) area and those 
outside of the area.  

  
4.3.2 She also asked what action the Authority was going to take to provide financial 

assistance to leaseholders on the Hanover/Lansdowne estate, some of whom 
were acknowledged as being within the most deprived 5% of the local population 
according to the Index of Multiple Deprivation.  In asking her question, Ms 
Greenhalgh asked who, in the Council, was responsible for ensuring energy 
targets were met  on the estate as well as the conduct of negotiations with 
energy companies on such matters.  

  
4.3.3 In response, Councillor Harry Harpham (Cabinet Member for Homes and 

Neighbourhoods) stated that it would have been helpful if Ms Greenhalgh had 
submitted her questions to him prior to the meeting. However, as previously 
indicated to Ms. Greenhalgh, he believed it was important to ensure that she 
received proper and accurate answers to her questions and, therefore, he would 
ask officers to provide Ms Greenhalgh with the information she required on the 
CESP boundaries, at the same time clarifying whether this information had been 
made available previously. However, if his discussions with officers revealed that 
that this information had already been supplied to her, it would not be re-
circulated.  

  
4.3.4 Councillor Harpham added that Ms Greenhalgh’s previous questions had been 

answered in detail by officers, and that it was important that the Authority 
ensured it achieved best value  from officer time which would not be achieved if 
officers were engaged in constantly answering the same questions and the 

Page 3



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 4 

 

  

Council would not continue to supply information to Ms Greehalgh if it had 
already been supplied.    

  
4.3.5 In terms of poverty and deprivation, Councillor Harpham stated that one of the  

main aims of the Council was to tackle poverty and, on the Hanover/Lansdowne 
estates, the Council was trying to tackle fuel poverty, which the Council took very 
seriously, for which there was a large amount of evidence to suggest the Council 
was taking action on this. 

  
4.4  Hanover/Lansdowne estate – Provision of Information on Digital Aerial Contract 

etc 
  
4.4.1 Stuart Lapp asked why he had not received satisfactory answers to previous 

questions he had asked at both Council and Cabinet meetings regarding that the 
charges for work relating to the advert for the digital aerial upgrade contract on 
the Hanover/Lansdowne estates and the costs of ladder hire for the project.  He 
alleged that the Council had not been open, honest and transparent and had 
exaggerated the truth on these matters. 

  
4.4.2 Councillor Harry Harpham (Cabinet  Member for Homes and Neighbourhoods ) 

indicated that he knew that Mr Lapp had already received responses to the 
questions he had asked on these issues as Councillor Harpham had seen the 
replies. He suggested that he and Mr Lapp disagreed as to what constituted a 
satisfactory answer was but re-iterated that, in his view, as indicated at other 
Cabinet meetings, the matters had been dealt with satisfactorily.   

  
4.5 Mr Martin Brighton asked the following questions to which answers were given 

by Cabinet Members as shown:- 
  
4.5.1 Correspondence from the South Community Assembly and elsewhere has 

confirmed that this Council DOES impose its chosen group(s) over community 
groups, and does so as part of council policy. When will the current 
administration reverse this policy, consistent with what it has consistently been 
publicly claiming for years ? 

  
4.5.2 Councillor Julie Dore (Leader) responded that she would require further 

information before she could answer Mr Brighton’s question and indicated that 
she had not seen the information referred to by Mr Brighton.  

  
4.5.3 Consideration of the minutes, attendances and agendas of meetings in the years 

prior to the creation of the ALMO, and continually from then and ongoing now, 
shows that there is a trend of ever-increasing disempowerment of tenants. When 
will the current administration resolve as a matter of policy to return to the 
TARAs the same functions as they previously had ? 

  
4.5.4 Councillor Julie Dore (Leader) indicated that she had stated, on many occasions, 

that the Administration would strive to increase tenant involvement in Council 
services and that the fact that the Council was hosting a meeting on Local 
Democracy this coming Friday, which would include the role of tenants and 
residents, was further evidence of the Council’s commitment to empowering local 

Page 4



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 5 

 

  

organisations to be involved in the design of Council services.   
  
4.5.5 Councillor Harry Harpham (Cabinet Member for Homes and Neighbourhoods) 

did not agree that there was a trend of ever-increasing disempowerment of 
tenants, although he agreed that there was in sufficient tenant involvement in the 
Housing Service. However, the City-wide Tenants Forum provided an 
opportunity to encourage representatives of Tenants’ and Residents and 
Associations to ask questions on Council policy and services. The Tenants’ 
Advisory Group to which tenants representatives were elected, provided a further 
avenue for consultations between tenants and the Council on important matters 
such as the Future of Council Housing project and, no doubt, the Group would 
continue to inform the Council of their views on the Council’s performance on 
consultation with tenants on an on-going basis. For example, he referred to the 
last meeting of the City-wide Forum, where a presentation was made by the 
Tenants for Change group, following which, Councillor Harpham had asked the 
Group to continue to examine the provision of Council services on estates, such 
as grass cutting.     

  
4.5.6 Councillor Harpham added that Councillor Tony Damms, Cabinet Advisor on 

Housing, had been given the task of  strengthening Tenants’ and Residents’ 
Associations and tenant participation in the re-design of Housing Services 
following the Future of Council Housing project  and that further meetings were 
proposed to capture tenant involvement in the Future of Council Housing. It was 
hoped that tenants would become more involved in decision-making on the 
services that affected their daily lives and the Council was very focussed  on this 
issue.  

  
4.5.7 Now that the functions of the ALMO are coming under council control, is it fair to 

assume that the same standards of accuracy of minutes of meetings will be 
continued with the Council as with the ALMO ? 

  
4.5.8 Councillor Harry Harpham (Cabinet Member for Homes and Neighbourhoods) 

responded that the minutes of meetings he had attended had been accurate and 
that he would ensure that, at any meeting he attended in the future, he would 
challenge the minutes if he felt they were inaccurate. He believed that the 
minutes of Sheffield Homes meetings and Council meetings were recorded 
accurately and properly 

  
4.5.9 Relatively recently, and area survey was carried out in the South West of the 

city. Over 200 items for action were recorded. Whilst some local work has been 
done, for which the citizens must be grateful, no one in the council has taken 
ownership and responsibility for seeing that all issues are addressed. What can 
the current administration do to rectify this? 

  
4.5.10 Councillor Julie Dore (Leader) believed that the Survey referred to had been 

commissioned by EDSL for members of the public in the South Community 
Assembly area, but that there was a lack of ownership of the Survey. However, 
she suggested that the Community Assembly model was the main vehicle for 
public involvement and Council accountability to members of the public in term of 
local decision making. This Survey should, therefore, be presented to the next 

Page 5



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 6 

 

  

meeting if South Community in order that that Community Assembly could take 
ownership of the Survey and, if they felt it necessary, refer the Survey for 
consideration by a Cabinet Member, Cabinet or Council.   

  
4.5.11 Will this current Administration please note, and respond to, the fact that many of 

this citizen’s questions remain unanswered ? 
  
4.5.12 Councillor Julie Dore (Leader) responded that whether Mr Brighton had not 

received answers to his questions relied on the interpretation of what constituted 
a response. The Cabinet felt that it had answered Mr Brighton’s questions but Mr 
Brighton felt that they had not according to his understanding. She suggested 
that Mr Brighton should refer to her any questions, he felt, had been unanswered 
whereupon she would check whether they had been responded to.   

  
4.5.13 Now that publication of the Newton Report has been forced upon the Council, 

what policies must change to demonstrate the Council’s claimed policy of 
openness, transparency and accountability, rather than the very expensive and 
ultimately futile policy of secrecy ?  

  
4.5.14 Councillor Julie Dore (Leader) indicated that it had always been the intention to 

publish the Newton Report but this had been delayed because of legal 
proceedings. However, the report was now in the public domain. She added that 
it was always the Council’s intention to be open, transparent and honest and it 
would continue to be so in the future. 

  
5. ITEMS CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY/REFERRED TO CABINET/COUNCIL 

  
5.1 The Deputy Chief Executive reported that there had been no items of business 

called in for scrutiny arising from the meeting of the Cabinet held on 23rd May, 
2012.  

  
5.2 The Cabinet noted the information reported. 
  
6. RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
  
6.1 The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report on Council staff retirements.  
  
6.2 RESOLVED: That this Cabinet :-  
  
 (a) places on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the City 

Council by the following staff in the Portfolios below:- 
  
 Name Post Years’ Service 
    
 Children, Young People and Families 
    
 Jadzia Camillin Teacher of Visually Impaired 

Children 
24 

    
 Julia Higgins Teacher, Grenoside Primary 39 

Page 6



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 7 

 

  

School 
    
 Rauf Kiyani Social Worker 26 
    
 Patricia Leslie Independent Reviewing 

Officer 
27 

    
 Jean Anne Mould Teacher, High Storrs School 28 
    
 Karen Reed Teacher, Reignhead Primary 

School 
35 

    
 Laraine 

Richardson 
Teacher - Curriculum Leader 
of Art, Newfield School 

31 

    
 Charmain Roddis Senior Teaching Assistant 

Level 3,  
Bents Green Secondary 
School 

29 

    
 Carol Scott Senior Teaching Assistant 

Level 3,  
Bents Green Secondary 
School 

26 

    
 Susan Carol 

Siddall 
Teacher, Malin Bridge 
Primary School 

25 

    
 Pamela Varney Senior Teaching Assistant 

Level 3,  
Birley Community College 

25 

    
 Penelope Wardle Teacher, Bradfield School 30 
    
 Gillian Wileman Teacher, Hartley Brook 

Primary School 
39 

 Communities 
    
 June Leek Business Development 

Manager 
20 

    
 Place 
    
 Robert Davison Assistant Head of Design 

and Build, Street Force 
36 

    
 Resources 
    
 James Lang School Funding Strategy 

Manager 
26 

Page 7



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 8 

 

  

    
 (b) extends to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and 
  
 (c) directs that an appropriate extract of this resolution under the Common Seal 

of the Council be forwarded to them. 
  
7. EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS DECISION RECORD 
  
 The following decisions were taken by the Cabinet:-. 
  
7.1. AGENDA ITEM 9: VOLUNTARY SECTOR GRANT FUND AWARDS 2012-13 
  
7.1.1 The Deputy Chief Executive submitted a report seeking recommending awards 

from the Voluntary Sector Grants Fund for the period 1st July 2012 to 31st March 
2013 and for a proposal to set up a new  Small Grants Fund 

7.1.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet:- 
   
 (a) having had due regard to the provisions of Sections 149 and 158 of the 

Equality Act 2010 and Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, 
and to the issues raised by those provisions, approves the grant award 
recommendations listed in Appendix 1;   

   
 (b) approves the creation of a new Small Grants Fund of £50,000 to be 

managed as part of the Council grant aid budget in line with the Council’s 
agreed Revenue Budget for 2012-13; and 

   
 (c) approves the actions, arrangements and recommendations at Sections 5, 

6 and 12 above, and the following specific delegations:-  
   
 (d) authorises the Director of Policy and Research to:-  
    
  (i) to agree the terms of and authorise the completion of all funding 

agreements relating to grants made from the Voluntary Sector 
Grants Fund, the Small Grants Fund and the Lunch Clubs Fund 
(‘the Grant Funds’), together with any other associated agreements 
or arrangements that he may consider appropriate, provided that if 
the terms of a proposed funding agreement involve the variation of 
any standard terms previously agreed by Internal Audit and / or 
Legal Services the agreement shall not be completed without the 
consent of the Chief Internal Auditor and the Director of Legal 
Services; and 

    
  (ii) where (a) a change of circumstance affects the ability of an 

organisation to deliver the purpose of the grant awarded, (b) the 
Director considers the performance of the organisation to be below 
an acceptable standard or (c) an organisation has breached any of 
the award conditions contained in their funding agreement, to 
review, adjust or suspend grant awards; and  

    

Page 8



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 9 

 

  

 (e) authorises the Director, Policy, Partnership and Research, in consultation 
with Cabinet Member for Communities and Inclusion:- 

   
  (i) to determine the eligibility criteria, and the award and monitoring 

processes for the new Small Grants Fund; 
    
  (ii) to agree the amounts, purposes and recipients of any individual 

grants awarded in year from the Grant Funds including any 
additional sums received or returned or unpaid funds; 

    
  (iii) to withdraw grant awards, where (a) a change of circumstance 

affects the ability of an organisation to deliver the purpose of the 
grant awarded or (b) the Director considers the performance of the 
organisation to be below an acceptable standard or (c) an 
organisation has breached any of the award conditions contained in 
their funding agreement.  

    
7.1.3 Reasons for Recommendations 
  
 The reason for the recommendations is to support the local voluntary sector by 

making awards of funding from the Council grant aid budget.  The purpose of 
grant aid investment is :- 

  
 • to mobilise volunteering and promote active citizenship  
  
 • to provide experience and training opportunities for local people and 

create jobs 
  
 • to provide important services for local citizens and innovative responses 

to emerging social needs  
  
 • to enable voluntary organisations to draw in external funding and boost 

the local economy.   
  
7.1.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
 No alternatives were considered because the purpose of the report is to 

implement decisions made by Cabinet to establish a Voluntary Sector Grants 
Fund, which were set out in the report Revenue Grant funding for the Voluntary 
and Community Sector 2012 onwards that was approved by Cabinet on 28th 
September 2011. 

  
 (NOTE: Councillor Jack Scott declared a prejudicial interest in the above item on 

the grounds of his employment with Voluntary Action Sheffield and left the room 
during the consideration of the item.) 

  
7.2 AGENDA ITEM 10: BUDGET OUT-TURN REPORT 2011-12 
  
7.2.1 The Director of Finance submitted a report which provided the final outturn 

position on the City Council’s Revenue and Capital Budget for 2011-12. 

Page 9



Meeting of the Cabinet 20.6.2012 Page 10 

 

  

  
7.2.2 RESOLVED: That Cabinet :-  
   
 (a) notes the outturn position and management actions provided by this 

report on the 2011/12 budget position;  
   
 (b) approves the additional carry forwards of £6.2m; and 
   
 (c ) in relation to the Capital Programme:-  
   
  (i) approves the delegations of procurement authority and contract 

awards in the Stage Approvals Report (Appendix 4);  
    
  (ii) notes the Director Variation in Appendix 4;  
    
  (iii) notes the Emergency Approvals in Appendix 4; and 

    
  (iv) notes the latest position on the Capital Programme.  

    
7.2.3 Reasons for Decision 
  
 To formally record changes to the Revenue Budget and the Capital Programme 

and gain Member approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to 
reset the capital programme in line with latest information 

  
7.2.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected 
  
 A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the process 

undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to Members. The 
recommendations made to Members represent what Officers believe to be the 
best options available to the Council, in line with Council priorities, given the 
constraints on funding and the use to which funding is put within the Revenue 
Budget and the Capital Programme. 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
 

 
Report of:   Deputy Chief Executive 
 

 
Date:    23rd May 2012 
 

 
Subject:   Staff Retirements 
 

 
Author of Report:  John Challenger, Democratic Services 
 

 
Summary: To report the retirement of staff across the  
 Council’s various Portfolios 
 
 

 
Recommendations: 
 
Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
(a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to the 

City Council by members of staff in the various Council Portfolios and 
referred to in the attached list; 

 
(b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and  
 
(c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with over 
twenty years service. 

 
 

 
Background Papers: None 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 

Agenda Item 8

Page 11



2 

REPORT TITLE: RETIREMENT OF STAFF 
 
1. To report the retirement of the following staff from the Council’s Service and 

to convey the Council’s thanks for their work:- 

 Name Post 
Years’ 
Service 

    
 Children, Young People and Families  
   
 John Allen Teacher, Hucklow Primary School 31 
    
 Glyn Barrott Teacher, Meadowhead School 33 
    
 Barbara Bryars Teacher, Hucklow Primary School 39 
    
 Jennifer Cross Teacher, High Storrs School 37 
    
 Charles Holden Teacher, Stradbroke Primary School 36 
    
 Anne Holland Teacher, Meadowhead School 31 
    
 Andrea Hughes MIS Manager, Meadowhead School 22 
    
 Lynne Poole Acting Assistant Headteacher/Teacher, 

Reignhead Primary School 
25 

    
 Marie Smith Deputy Headteacher, Stradbroke 

Primary School 
36 

    
 Ian Taylor Assistant Headteacher, Hatfield Primary 

School 
26 

    
 Cath Vincent Assistant Headteacher, Meadowhead 

School 
34 

    
 Communities   
    
 Peter Allen Training and Development Consultant 38 
    
 James Brodie Support Worker 29 
    
 Place   
    
 Richard Benson Geographic Information Officer 37 
    
 Keith Cain Cemetery Operative 36 
    
 Peter Dyson Senior Technician, Highway Co-

ordination  
27 

    

Page 12



3 

 David Hume Bereavement Officer 24 
    
 Alan Hunt Cemetery Operative 36 
    
 Keith Long Group Manager, Building Standards  37 
    
 Peter Mallinder Principal Engineer 37 
    
 Ian Peck Project Management Practice Manager 29 
    
 Ian Taylor Head of Design and Project 

Management 
38 

    
 Martin Taylor Operations Controller - Workshops 40 
    
 Resources   
    
 John Plant Financial Services Manager 31 
    
 Denise Reynolds Senior Business Support Officer 36 
 
 
2. To recommend that Cabinet:- 
  
 (a) place on record its appreciation of the valuable services rendered to 

the City Council by the above – mentioned members of staff in the 
Portfolios stated :- 

  
 (b) extend to them its best wishes for the future and a long and happy 

retirement; and 
  
 (c) direct that an appropriate extract of the resolution now made under  the 

Common Seal of the Council be forwarded to those staff above with 
over twenty years service. 

 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Cabinet Report 9

Report of:   Simon Green, Executive Director Place
______________________________________________________________

Date:    11th July 2012 
______________________________________________________________

Subject: Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route: Land Acquisition and
Compulsory Purchase Order.   
______________________________________________________________

Author of Report:  David Budd, (0114) 2735031 
______________________________________________________________

Summary: In order to deliver the BRT Northern Route to the programme 
agreed with central government, the required land must be acquired and all 
rights negotiated in the calendar years 2012/13. In total 15 plots of land need 
to be acquired. The intention is to acquire by negotiation, however a 
Compulsory Purchase Order is being developed in parallel to give certainty of 
scheme delivery. The land required will be purchased at market value and its 
acquisition will represent an increase in the Council’s asset portfolio.

______________________________________________________________

Reasons for Recommendations   
Acquisition of the land, and the making of powers to compulsorily purchase 
any plots that cannot be negotiated by agreement, are necessary to deliver 
the BRT North scheme which will contribute to the objectives of ‘Standing up 
for Sheffield’ and the Sheffield City Region Transport Strategy. 

Recommendations:
The recommendations in summary are for authority to be given for the making 
and advertisement of a CPO for the BRT North scheme, in parallel with the 
acquisition of all necessary land and rights by agreement.
______________________________________________________________

Background Papers: 

Category of Report: OPEN

Agenda Item 9

Page 15



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial Implications 

YES Cleared by: Paul Schofield 

Legal Implications 

YES Cleared by: Julian Ward 

Equality of Opportunity Implications

YES Cleared by: Ian Oldershaw 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

NO

Human rights Implications

NO

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

YES

Economic impact 

YES

Community safety implications 

NO

Human resources implications 

NO

Property implications 

YES

Area(s) affected 

Darnall Ward 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

Cllr Leigh Bramall – Cabinet Member: Business, Skills and Development 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

Economic and Environmental Wellbeing 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

YES

Press release 

YES

G:\CEX\L&G\ComSec\Meetings and Committees\Cabinet\Reports\2012\11 July 2012\9 (a) - CPO Cabinet Statutory 
and Council Policy Checklist.doc Page 16



1

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

     REPORT TO CABINET 
11TH July 2012 

BUS RAPID TRANSIT NORTHERN ROUTE –  
LAND ACQUISITION AND COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER 

1.0              SUMMARY

1.1    The Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route (BRT North) is a proposed new 
fast, efficient and sustainable public transport link improving 
connections between the centres of Rotherham and Sheffield, 
providing direct access to the Lower Don Valley which is the 
development spine of the Sheffield City Region .  BRT North includes 
the Tinsley Link Road, and is regarded as vital economic enabling 
infrastructure. As such it has a key role to play in achieving the 
Council’s corporate objective of developing a strong and competitive 
economy.

1.2  Having been accepted by the Department for Transport as part of their 
national Major Schemes Programme, BRT North must now obtain the 
remaining statutory approvals necessary, which will enable 
Government funding to be drawn down and ultimately for the scheme 
to be delivered. Having obtained the necessary planning approvals, 
acquisition of the land needed to construct the scheme is the next 
stage in the current programme for BRT North. 

1.3 The intention is to acquire by agreement all affected land and rights 
necessary to deliver the scheme, however in order to strengthen the 
case for deliverability, it is intended to run these negotiations in parallel 
with a Compulsory Purchase Order. 

1.4  This report describes the case for obtaining the necessary authority to 
make, publish and submit to the Secretary of State for Transport for 
confirmation, the Compulsory Purchase Order required to implement 
the Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route, including the Tinsley Link. 

1.5 The report also seeks authority to acquire by agreement, affected land 
and rights in parallel with the Compulsory Purchase Order and, subject 
to confirmation of the Order, compulsorily acquire the outstanding land 
interests included in the Order. 

1.6 The proposed land acquisition has financial implications and this report 
seeks to advise Cabinet on this and more broadly on the continued 
development of Bus Rapid Transit North and the current funding plan.

Page 17



2

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE PEOPLE OF SHEFFIELD 

2.1 The BRT North scheme will provide a fast, reliable, sustainable means 
of public transport which is accessible to everyone, be they residents, 
or visitors to Sheffield. It will provide high-quality access to key 
employment locations and development sites in both Rotherham and 
Sheffield Centres, as well as the Lower Don Valley, which forms part of 
the Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Zone.

2.2 The scheme will provide additional capacity in both the public transport 
and local highway networks thus enabling the delivery of key 
employment-generating developments within the City. This private 
sector-led growth will strengthen the economy and generate jobs, 
including the opportunity for those of a highly skilled nature through 
advanced manufacturing and supply chain companies. 

2.3 The BRT North scheme will provide a competitive public transport 
option, which twinned with the provision of additional highway capacity 
through busy sections of the network, will reduce congestion and 
delays, improving conditions for inward investment and contributing to 
the provision of sustainable transport systems in the most sensitive 
areas.

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 

3.1 The key outcome of this report will be approval to proceed with the 
acquisition of land by negotiation and the advertisement and making of 
a compulsory purchase order in support of the BRT North scheme. 
Acquiring all necessary land is essential to the delivery of the scheme 
and will enable government funding to be drawn down as part of the 
national transport Major Schemes programme. 

3.2  Ultimately the acquisition of land and the publication of a Compulsory 
Purchase Order will enable the delivery of the BRT North scheme. As 
an enabler of development proposals on key strategic employment 
sites, the BRT North scheme will contribute to the development of a 
strong and competitive economy through the introduction of sustainable
and safe transport infrastructure. By providing high-quality access to 
enhanced employment opportunities, and a congestion-alleviating 
sustainable transport option, this scheme will help create the conditions 
for a great place to live. All of which represent key objectives of the City 
Council’s Corporate Plan: Standing up for Sheffield.  

 REPORT 

4.0 BACKGROUND 

4.1 BRT North connects the centres of Rotherham and Sheffield with each 
other and to existing and proposed development sites in the Lower Don 

Page 18



3

Valley, including sites linked to the Sheffield City Region Enterprise 
Zone which is being established to deliver significant growth in 
advanced manufacturing and engineering. It will provide access to jobs 
in the corridor and the urban centres whilst providing the capacity 
needed to allow the next phase of developments in the Lower Don 
Valley to be completed. It is estimated that developments which will 
provide in excess of 4000 jobs will be unlocked by the scheme. A plan 
showing the BRT Northern route within Sheffield is attached at 
Appendix A.

4.2 BRT North is a cross-boundary scheme and as such has been 
developed as a partnership between Sheffield City Council, Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council and the South Yorkshire Passenger 
Transport Executive. This partnership is bound by a written agreement 
which sets out the roles and responsibilities of each member so as to 
best ensure the delivery of the project on programme and to budget. 

4.3 Supporting economic growth is a key objective of the Sheffield City 
Region Transport Strategy 2011-2026. Furthermore the promotion of a 
strong and competitive economy is a priority area for Sheffield City 
Council’s Corporate Plan 2011-14: Standing up for Sheffield. This 
priority sets out the need for economic growth, led by the private 
sector, the creation of more and better jobs, and the establishment of a 
highly skilled workforce. BRT North provides enabling infrastructure 
which will contribute to the realisation of these economic objectives. 

4.4   This creates a very strong strategic fit for the delivery of BRT North 
which is fundamental to the growth aspirations of the joint economy of 
Rotherham and Sheffield, which is dependent on effective connectivity. 
The scheme is also heavily embedded in the objectives of the Sheffield 
Development Framework and is explicitly referenced in the policies of 
the Core Strategy relating to sustainable transport and employment 
creation in the Lower Don Valley. 

4.5 Following Cabinet Approval on 10th March 2010, BRT North was 
submitted as a business case to the Department for Transport’s Major 
Schemes fund, and in December 2011 was granted programme entry 
status which confirms a conditional offer of funding. The Government’s 
current spending review period dictates that all funded schemes need 
to be complete by 2015, and all necessary statutory approvals have to 
be in place before full funding approval is granted in late 2013. 

5.0 SCHEME OBJECTIVES, DESCRIPTION AND TIMESCALE 

5.1 BRT North will provide a fast, efficient and sustainable public transport 
link by means of a series of infrastructure improvements and a limited 
stop rapid bus service with modern, high quality vehicles and 
passenger facilities. The main features of the scheme are as follows: 

Page 19



4

 A high quality express bus service, which is frequent, reliable with 
competitive journey times serving key developments and 
employment locations along the route. 

  A new all-user highway link which will bypass J34 South of the M1, 
known as the Tinsley Link. Incorporating high levels of public 
transport priority, the Tinsley Link will provide the much needed 
highway capacity to allow proposed as well as future developments 
to be built in the area. This capacity will provide essential 
congestion relief at the busy motorway junction... 

  Revised junction layouts and traffic signal control with the 
introduction of intelligent detection along the route to provide BRT 
vehicles with priority whilst minimising the impact on other road 
users.

  High quality, modern low-emission vehicles with the capacity to 
provide a high-volume rapid transit service.

  Purpose-built stops, providing a high quality waiting environment, 
coupled with real-time passenger information and smart ticketing. 

5.2 There is very strong policy justification for the delivery of BRT North, 
including at the local, sub-regional and national level. This was 
evidenced in the Planning Statement which supported the Outline 
Planning application for the Tinsley Link (reference 10/03699/RG3), 
which was granted approval in May 2011. In addition the scheme is 
supported by the Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Partnership 
who has previously supplied letters of support for BRT North. As 
presented in the Strategic Case to Government, the main objectives of 
the scheme are: 

 Development and economic regeneration: to support existing 
developments and enable future economic growth in the Lower Don 
Valley and the urban centres.

 Connecting people to jobs: to improve the quality, capacity and 
reliability of public transport in the Rotherham to Sheffield corridor..  

 Strategic connectivity: to address congestion and connectivity 
issues in this important manufacturing and development corridor.

 Environmental improvements: to contribute to improved local air 
quality and lower carbon emissions from transport, 

5.3      At various stages in the development of the scheme public consultation 
has been carried out, most notably during the planning application 
process for the Tinsley Link. This consultation included presentations 
at the Tinsley and Darnall Forums (which support the East Community 
Assembly), articles in local newsletters, exhibitions in local community 
buildings, site notices, the production of a digi-brief, and a dedicated 
website.

5.4 Subject to successful acquisition of the necessary land and access 
rights by agreement, and full approval by the Department for Transport, 
the timescale for construction is to start on-site in January 2014 with 
practical completion by September 2015.  This timescale is as per the 

Page 20



5

programme submitted to the Department for Transport. Should 
negotiations fail and the CPO be opposed then this would be likely to 
result in a delay to the programme of 8-12 months. 

6.0             EXTENT OF COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER AREA 

6.1 The areas shaded pink on the Map displayed at the meeting of Cabinet 
on the 11th July 2012 and marked 'Map referred to in The City of 
Sheffield (Attercliffe Common, Carbrook St, Dunlop St, Weedon St, 
Meadowhall Way, Sheffield Rd) (Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route) 
(Classified Road A6178, C747) Compulsory Purchase Order 2012', 
and in the Members’ Library, indicate the extent of the acquisitions in 
the proposed Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO). At an early stage in 
the process all known land-owners and tenants were contacted to 
explain the scheme in detail and to provide the opportunity for any 
concerns to be discussed and if possible resolved. This enabled the 
establishment of a good working relationship with the majority of the 
affected parties.

6.2    The intention is to acquire by agreement the necessary land and access 
rights and to agree accommodation works to the satisfaction of the 
relevant parties. Informal, early discussions have informed this process 
and negotiations are either now under-way or are set to commence 
depending on the land in question. In a number of instances much of 
the land shaded pink will remain in its current use following completion 
of the scheme, but is included in the Order so that access can be 
secured to undertake essential elements of the works. 

6.3 Referring to the CPO Map (included as appendix B), plots 1 and 3 form 
part of forecourts and frontage landscaping of premises fronting 
Attercliffe Common. Following the highway improvements to these 
plots, the land not required for highway purposes will revert to the 
occupants to use in pursuance of their businesses, and any necessary 
reinstatement of landscaping or surfacing carried out. 

6.4 Plots 5 and 6 form part of the Howco Group’s premises on Dunlop 
Street. Both plots are required to enable improvements to the 
manoeuvring of both the Bus Rapid Transit Vehicles and the heavy 
goods vehicles which access the Howco site. The land not required for 
highway purposes will revert to the occupant to use in pursuance of 
their business, and access to the premises during construction will be 
maintained at all times to ensure normal working operations can take 
place.

6.5 Plots 7-15 are required for the construction of the Tinsley Link. The 
horizontal alignment of the Tinsley Link is constrained by a number of 
existing physical features as well as highway design standards. These 
include the supporting piers of the Tinsley Motorway viaduct, the 
Supertram system, the heavy rail line, the River Don, an electricity 
substation, and existing  development sites in the area which already 

Page 21



6

have planning consent. As a consequence the alignment is fixed as 
there is no feasible alternative which would enable the scheme to be 
delivered. Plots 7-13 (including 14c) include land to enable permanent 
access to the structural elements of the Tinsley Link for essential 
maintenance and access. 

6.6 Further information on the justification for the land required for the BRT  
North Scheme will be provided in the draft Statement of Reasons which 
will be submitted to the Secretary of State in support of the proposed 
CPO.

7.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The Director of Legal Services has been consulted and has advised 
that the Council can pursue the acquisition of any land not acquired by 
negotiation by promoting a Compulsory Purchase Order, using the 
powers contained within the Highways Act 1980 and all other powers 
enabling it in that behalf.

8.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 The estimated cost for the scheme is £34,348,000.  The portion of the 
costs allocated for land acquisition is currently £2,230,000.   This figure 
takes into account compensation for land take, disturbance, loss 
payments and fees.  It also includes a risk allowance based on a 
Quantified Risk Analysis that took into account additional costs that 
may arise during the process. The costs of any identified 
accommodation works are picked up separately within the cost plan 
and feature as part of the civil works estimates. In order to achieve the 
current programme, and to meet the timescales for the Department for 
Transport’s full approval stage, the majority of this expenditure is to be 
incurred in 2012/13 and 2013/14.

8.2 This expenditure would pre-date the release of Central Government 
funding and would need to be financed by a recently successful bid for 
£3,000,000 to the Local Enterprise Partnership’s Growing Places fund. 
This money is a loan which will be repaid on receipt of developer 
contributions anticipated when the economy recovers.  Some of the 
agreements are in place but not collectable until the development 
commences.  In the event that the contributions were not realised, the 
Council would have to step in with its own funds. There is no provision 
in the current Capital Programme so some re-prioritisation of funding 
would be required. The current funding plan for BRT North assumes 
£3,000,000 of private developer contributions, to which the Council 
would be exposed were the anticipated developer contributions not 
realised.

8.3      The funding plan for the overall scheme is made up as follows: £19.4m 

Page 22



7

from the Department for Transport’s Major schemes fund; £2m local 
authority contribution (to be supplied by the project partners from the 
Local Transport Plan allocation); £3m of Section 106 developer 
contributions; and a £10m ERDF grant which is as yet unapproved. 

8.4           The legal costs associated with the production and advertisement of 
the Orders will be met by the scheme. In accordance with Financial 
Regulations a capital approval form has been submitted to Cabinet for 
approval of all 2012/13 council expenditure on this scheme.   

9.0             EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1           Fundamentally the BRT North scheme will be of universal benefit to all 
users regardless of age, race, faith, sex, disability, sexuality, etc.  
However, it will be of particular benefit to certain groups including the 
young, elderly, disabled  and their carers.  It will also benefit families 
with young children and certain communities within Sheffield including 
BME communities.  The design of the BRT Northern route has taken 
into consideration the needs of users with reduced mobility, including 
people with visual impairments, and incorporated measures such as 
tactile paving where appropriate.

9.2 The route enhances sustainable tranport connections to local centres 
in the Lower Don Valley, specifically Attercliffe and Tinsley, which have 
strong BME communities and also feature prominently in the City's 
index of multiple deprivation. The BRT North service will improve 
access to employment opportunities and vital services, especially for 
those without access to a car. The BRT North services which will 
operate along the route will be modern low-floor vehicles which provide 
the highest level of access for disabled users, including on-board audio 
information for passengers with visual impairments and learning 
disabilities.   

10.0         ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS

10.1         Environmental implications arise from the scheme and these have 
been addressed as part of the scheme planning and design process. A 
detailed Environmental Statement was prepared for the Tinsley Link 
planning application which considered issues such as air quality, 
ecology, noise and vibration. Those measures identified which would 
mitigate the impact of the scheme have been conditioned as part of the 
planning application approval.  

11.0         COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

11.1         Community Safety implications arise from the scheme and these have 
been addressed as part of the scheme planning and design process, 
for example improved street lighting. 

Page 23



8

12.0         HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS 

12.1    The rights of any affected parties under the Human Rights Act 1998, 
particularly Article 1 of the First Protocol, have been taken into 
account.   Having regard to the public interest and the improvements 
the scheme will bring to the transport network, the proposed alterations 
to the highway network and to private means of access do not 
constitute an unlawful interference with any of these rights, nor do the 
acquisitions constitute an unlawful interference with any of these rights. 

13.0    REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

13.1 Acquisition of the land, and the making of powers to compulsorily 
purchase any plots that cannot be negotiated by agreement, are 
necessary to deliver the BRT North scheme which will contribute to the 
objectives of ‘Standing up for Sheffield’ and the Sheffield City Region 
Transport Strategy.

14.0         RECOMMENDATIONS  

14.1        Authority be given for the City Council to make a Compulsory 
Purchase Order under the powers conferred by the Highways Act 1980 
to acquire the land coloured pink on the Map displayed at the meeting 
of Cabinet on 11th July 2012 and marked 'Map referred to in The City 
of Sheffield (Attercliffe Common, Carbrook St, Dunlop St, Weedon St, 
Meadowhall Way, Sheffield Rd) (Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route) 
(Classified Road A6178, C747) Compulsory Purchase Order 2012'. 

14.2 Authority be given for the Director of Legal Services to authorise the
making of the CPO, to take all necessary procedural steps prior to and 
after the making of the CPO, to enable the CPO to be submitted to the 
Secretary of State for Transport for confirmation including : -

(a) finalising the draft statement of reasons;
(b)  finalising the Schedule of Interests
(c)   serving notices of the making of the CPO on all persons entitled to 

such notice and placing necessary press notices;

and to submit the CPO to the Secretary of State for confirmation.

14.3 Authority be given for the Director of Finance and the Director of 
Property and Facilities Management Services, in conjunction with the 
Director of Legal Services to acquire and/or secure affected land and 
rights by agreement up to the value of £750,000 for individual interests 
in parallel with the Compulsory Purchase Order, so that we can 
practically implement the scheme. 

14.3  That the Director of Legal Services be authorised to sign and serve any 
Notices and documents and together with the Executive Director of 

Page 24



9

Place be authorised to take all other necessary action to give effect to 
these recommendations. 

14.4 As soon as the Order is confirmed by the Secretary of State for 
Transport to advertise the confirmation of the CPO and serve all 
necessary notices of confirmation and once the CPO becomes 
operative, the Director of Legal Services be authorised to serve Notices 
to Treat under Section 5 of the Compulsory Purchase Act 1965, and 
where necessary, to serve Notices of Entry under Section 11 of the 
same Act in respect of the land included in the Order, or to execute 
general vesting declarations under the Compulsory Purchase (Vesting 
Declarations) Act 1981.

Simon Green 
Executive Director of Place 

11 July 2012 

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



10
SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Cabinet Report 
    

Report of:   Laraine Manley, Executive Director for Resources
________________________________________________________________ 

Report to:   Cabinet 
________________________________________________________________ 

Date:    11th July 2012 
________________________________________________________________ 

Subject:   Capital Programme Approvals Month 1 
________________________________________________________________ 

Author of Report:  Paul Schofield, 0114 27 36000 
________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

This report seeks approval for a number of variations and additions to the 2012/13 
 Capital Programme, and the approval of two procurement strategies for the  
delivery of projects in the programme. 

________________________________________________________________ 

Reasons for Recommendations:

The proposed changes to the Capital programme will improve the 
transport, homes and leisure facilities used by the people of Sheffield. 

To formally record changes to the Capital Programme and gain Member 
approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to reset the 
capital programme in line with latest information. 

Recommendations:

That Cabinet 

(i) approves the proposed additions to the capital programme listed in 

Appendix 1, including the procurement strategies and delegates authority 

to the Director of Commercial Services or Delegated Officer, as 

appropriate,  to award the necessary contracts following stage approval 

by Capital Programme Group; 

Agenda Item 10

Page 29



(ii) approves the variations in Appendix 1; 

(iii) notes the following variations to the Capital Programme: 

  1 emergency approval with a value of £150k; 

  2 variations approved within the delegated limit of the Executive 
Management Team for a value of £38k; and 

  that there were no variations approved by Directors under their 
delegated authority. 

The details of the schemes can be found at Appendix 1. 

________________________________________________________________ 

Background Papers: 

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 30



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial Implications 

YES Cleared by: Eugene Walker

Legal Implications 

NO Cleared by: Gillian Duckworth

Equality of Opportunity Implications 

   NO 

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications 

NO

Human rights Implications

NO:

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

NO

Economic impact 

NO

Community safety implications 

NO

Human resources implications 

NO

Property implications 

NO

Area(s) affected 

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

Bryan Lodge – Cabinet Member for Finance 

Relevant Scrutiny Committee if decision called in 

Economic and Environmental Well Being  

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?    

NO

Press release 

Not as yet, but at the appropriate time 

Page 31



Approvals and variations to the Capital programme – Month 1 

1.0 SUMMARY

1.1
1. A number of schemes have been submitted for approval in line with 

the Council’s agreed capital approval process. In line with the 

agreed financial reporting calendar, there will be no reporting of 

Month 1 (April 2012) figures. The next reporting period will be 

Month 2 (May 2012). 

1.2 Below is a summary of the number and total value of schemes in each 
approval category: 

  11 additions to the capital programme with a total value of 

£7,764k;

  6 variations to the capital programme to the value of £2,131k; 

  2 procurement strategy approvals. 

1.3 The following have been approved since the previous report to Cabinet in 
May:

  1 emergency approval with a value of £150k; 

  2 variations approved within the delegated limit of the Executive 
Management Team for a value of £38k 

1.4 No directors exercised their delegation to vary investment authorities 
since the last report to Cabinet. 

1.5 Further details of the schemes listed above can be found in Appendix 1. 

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR SHEFFIELD PEOPLE 

2.1 The proposed changes to the Capital programme will improve the 
transport, homes and leisure facilities used by the people of Sheffield. 

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 

3.1 By delivering these schemes the Council seeks to improve the quality of 
life for the people of Sheffield.

4.0 MAIN BODY OF THE REPORT 

4.1 Background and Key Issues

The details of the schemes can be found at Appendix 1. 

Page 32



5.0 Human Resources Implications
5.1 There are no direct Human Resource implications for the Council. 

6.0 Financial Implications
6.1 The primary purpose of this report is to provide Members with information 

on the proposed changes to the City Council’s Capital Programme and, 
as such, it does not make any recommendations which have additional 
financial implications for the City Council. 

7.0 Equal Opportunity Implications
7.1 There are no specific equal opportunity implications arising from the 

recommendations in this report.

8.0 Procurement Implications
8.1 There are no direct procurement implications arising from this report. 

9.0 Legal Implications
9.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report. 

10.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

10.1 A number of alternative courses of action are considered as part of the 
process undertaken by Officers before decisions are recommended to 
Members. The recommendations made to Members represent what 
Officers believe to be the best options available to the Council, in line 
with Council priorities, given the constraints on funding and the use to 
which funding is put within the Revenue Budget and the Capital 
Programme.

11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

11.1 The proposed changes to the Capital programme will improve the 
services  to the people of Sheffield 

11.2 To formally record changes to the Capital Programme and gain Member 
approval for changes in line with Financial Regulations and to reset the 
capital programme in line with latest information. 

12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

12.1 That Cabinet:

12.2
(i) approves the proposed additions to the capital programme listed in 

Appendix 1, including the procurement strategies and delegates authority 

to the Director of Commercial Services or Delegated Officer, as 

appropriate,  to award the necessary contracts following stage approval 

by Capital Programme Group; 

Page 33



12.3 (ii) approves the variations in Appendix 1; 

12.4 (iii) notes the following variations to the Capital Programme: 

  2 variations approved within the delegated limit of the Executive 
Management Team for a value of £38k; and 

  that there were no variations approved by Directors under their 
delegated authority. 

12.5 (iv) notes 1 emergency approval with a value of £150k. 

Finance         May 2012 

Page 34



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

S
c
h

e
m

e
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

p
p

T
y
p

e
£
0
0
0

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
 

ro
v
a
l

V
a
lu

e
P

ro
c
u

re
m

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

S
:-

 
 

 

H
h

ig
w

a
y
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
: 

      

e
d

 T
h
e
 

h
ir
e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d
 

o
rt

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
£

5
,4

2
8

k
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

 T
h
is

 w
ill

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 l
is

te
d
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

to
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 P

F
I 

l 
g
ra

n
t 

w
ill

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

b
e
 p

a
y
a
b
le

 u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

F
I 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 b
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
ro

-r
a
te

 b
a
s
is

 w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 P

F
I 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

A
d
d
it
io

6
5
2

3
,0

0
0

5
0
0

5
0
0

3
5
8

6
9

7
9

In
 H

o
u
s
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

P
ri

m
a
ry

 R
o

a
d

s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

N
o

n
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 R
o

a
d

s
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

ti
o

n

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e
 

F
o

o
tw

a
y
 R

e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c

S
tr

e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g

 

P
e

n
is

to
n

e
 R

o
a

d
 (

B
ra

d
fi

e
ld

 R
o

a
d

 t
o

 H
e

rr
ie

s
 R

o
a

d
) 

 
B

a
rn

s
le

y
 R

o
a

d
 (

H
a

tf
ie

ld
 H

o
u

s
e
 R

o
a
d

 t
o

 K
in

a
ir

d
 A

v
e
n

u
e
) 

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
s
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 b

lo
c
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 o
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

.
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 S

o
u
th

 Y
o

rk
s

T
ra

n
s
p

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t.

T
h
is

 a
n
n
u

a

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
s
.

n

 
 

 

 
 

 

B
u

s
 R

a
p

id
 T

ra
n

s
it

 (
B

R
T

) 
N

o
rt

h
 (

L
a

n
d

 A
c

q
u

is
it

io
n

) 
A

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
is

 s
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

 l
a
n
d
 a

c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
a
b
le

 
th

is
 k

e
y
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
. 

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 b

id
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 

A
d
d
it
io

n
 

2
,3

9
8
 

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 1

 o
f 
8

 

Page 35



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

a
n
d
 E

u
ro

p
e
a
n
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n
t.
  

T
h
e
 f
u
ll 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 c

o
s
t 

o
v
e
r 

£
3
4
m

d
e
liv

e
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 R

o
th

e
rh

a
m

 a
n
d
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 a

n
d
 i

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 m

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 t

o
 r

e
g
e
n
e
ra

te
 t

h
e
 L

o
w

e
r 

D
o
n
 V

a
lle

y
.

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 

s
 a

 b
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

m
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 c

o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

b
a
c
k
e
d
 G

ro
w

in
g
 P

la
c
e
s
 

T
h
is

 p
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 u
lt
im

a
te

ly
 b

e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 

in
te

ri
F

u
n
d
.

M
il
lh

o
u

s
e
s
 M

il
l 

B
u

il
d

in
g

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 k

n
o

w
n
 a

s
 

o
u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 F

ri
e
n
d
s
 o

f 
M

ill
h
o
u
s
e
s
 P

a
rk

 

a
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 u

p
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 S

C
C

, 
to

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t

h
e
 w

h
o
le

 c
o
m

p
le

x
 a

n
d
 b

ri
n
g
 i
t 

in
to

 a
c
ti
v
e
 u

s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

h
ils

t 
.

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
a

l 
A

p
p

ro
v
a

l:
- 

T
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
n
s
is

ts
 o

f 
re

p
a
ir
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

m
ill

 b
u
ild

in
M

ill
h
o

u
s
e
s
 M

ill
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 M

ill
h
o
u

s
e
s
 P

a
rk

. 
 

T
h
e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 h

a
s
 s

to
n
e
 w

a
lls

 a
n
d
 i
s
 o

f 
a
 t
ra

d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
, 

w
it
h
 a

 d
a
m

a
g
e
d
 

ro
o
f.
 A

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

(F
O

M
P

) 
th

ro
u
g
h
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t.
 

T
h
e
 f

ri
e
n
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
l

p
re

s
e
rv

in
g
 a

 h
is

to
ri
c
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
:-

 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 b
y
 F

O
M

P
†

  
  

  
  

  
6
7
,8

9
3
 

S
C

C
 R

e
v
e

n
u
e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
4
4
,0

7
2
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

  
 1

5
,9

1
0

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 1

2
7
,8

7
5

†
  

  
 C

o
n
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
is

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 c

o
n

fi
rm

in
g

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 s

ta
tu

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

F
O

M
P

, 
o
b
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 w

ri
tt

e
n

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

A
d
d
it
io

n
o
m

p
a
c
t

e
. 

 I
f 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 K

ie
r 

th
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

is
 n

o
t 

v
a
lu

e
 

o
n
e
y
, 
a
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

e
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 

L
o
tt
e
ry

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 s

ta
te

 

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 

d
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
e

s
. 

 J
o

b
s
 

C
o
m

p
a
c
t 

w
it
h
 K

ie
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 a

s
 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

1
2
8

J
o
b
s
 C

In
it
ia

ti
v

fo
r 

m

o
u

t.

N
o
te

; 
th

o
p
p
o

p
ro

v
i

a
p

p
re

n
ti

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 2

 o
f 
8

 

Page 36



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

P
e
a
k
 P

a
rk

 C
ro

s
s
in

g
 

T
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 p

ro
v
id

e
 3

 s
a
fe

 r
o
a
d
 c

ro
s
s
in

g
s
 f

o
r 

c
y
c
lis

ts
 a

n
d
 p

e
d
e
s
tr

ia
n

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

y
c
le

 N
e
tw

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

o
rk

 6
. 

lo
c

A
d
d
it
io

In
-H

o
u
s
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
2
-1

3
 L

o
c
a
l 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
la

n
 (

L
T

P
) 

a
l

T
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 f

u
lly

 f
u
n
d
e

a
ti
o
n
.

n
 

3
0
 

H
a
n

d
s
w

o
rt

h
 W

a
v
e
rl

e
y
 L

in
k
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 a

n
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

y
c
le

 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 H

a
n
d
s
w

o
rt

h
W

a
v
e
rl
e
y
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rk

. 
 T

h
e
 c

y
c
le

 r
o
u
te

 w
ill

 b
e
 s

ig
n

e
d

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
rf

a
c
e
d
 

b
o
u
n
d
a
ry

 w
it
h
 R

o
th

e
rh

a
m

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 w

o
rk

s
. 

 A
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

 a
n
d
 

to
 t

h
e
 

o
u
t 

a
n
d
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 R

o
th

e
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 t

h
e
 c

y
c
le

 r
o
u
te

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
t 

is
 £

5
0
k
 a

n
d
 i
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 L

T
P

 C
o
u
n
ty

w
id

e
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
  

A
d
d
it
io

n
 

5
0
 

In
 H

o
u
s
e
 P

ro
v
id

e
r 

b
o

u
n

d
a

ry
.

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
S

:-
 

C
h

a
u

c
e

r 
P

u
b

li
c

 R
e

a
lm

 
T

h
is

 v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 f

o
r 

£
3
0
0
k
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

ro
w

th
 F

u
n

b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

ro
w

th
 F

u
n
d
.

T
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
a

s
 o

ri
g
in

a
lly

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 M

a
rc

h
 

d
; 

th
is

 h
a
s
 

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 p

a
v
e
m

e
n
t,
 

s
tr

e
e
t 

lig
h
ti
n
g
, 

s
tr

e
e
t 

fu
rn

it
u
re

, 
p
a
rk

in
g
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
ft
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
in

g
. 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

 a
re

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

 a
t 

£
2
2
0
k
w

it
h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
fe

e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 m
a
k
in

g
 u

p
 t

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

d
e

r.

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

o
w

in
g
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
0
0
9
; 

th
is

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 w

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 

T
h
is

 p
a

p
ro

je
c
t 

w
ill

 t
ie

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
fi
n
is

h
e
d
 p

u
b
lic

 r
e
a
lm

 w
o
rk

th
e
 r

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 u

p
 t

o
 a

n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

.
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 

3
0
0
 

F
o
ll

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

s
 

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 3

 o
f 
8

 

Page 37



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

 
 

 

In
s

u
la

ti
o

n
s

T
h
is

 i
s
 f

o
r 

a
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
i

T
h
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 i
n
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 h

o
m

e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 c

it
y
. 

 p
ro

j

t 
o
f 

th
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

te
d
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
, 

th
is

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

im
p
e
n
d
in

g
 d

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

c
la

im
s
 f

o
r 

c
e

rt
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

n
e
ra

te
 m

o
re

 

n
g
 r

a
te

s
 

.5
0
 p

e
r 

o
n
 o

u
r 

b
e
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
, 

a
ll 

e
ff
o
rt

s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 

to
ta

l 
to

 g
iv

e
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
t 

fo
r 

1
2
/1

3
 o

f 
£
2
,6

6
1
k
.

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 b
y
 1

0
,0

0
0
 m

o

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

E
x
is

ti
n
g

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y

e
c
t.

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 a
s
 t

h
e
 o

u
tp

u
ts

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
 p

a
r

a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 a

 b
e
a
ri
n
g
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

A
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
2
1
0
k
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

ra
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 c

lim
a
te

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 F

u
n
d
. 

 £
1
2
0
k
 o

f 
c
e
rt

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t

h
a
t 

w
a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

u
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
a
id

 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
a
n
 

o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 k

e
p
t,
 i
t 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
f 
w

e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 t

o
 g

e
c
a
rb

o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

e
 c

o
u
ld

 k
e
e
p
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 n
e
w

 n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

E
R

T
 f

u
n
d
i

w
it
h
 E

D
F

, 
to

 m
o
v
e
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 a

m
a
lg

a
m

a
te

d
 r

a
te

 o
f 

£
1
2
.7

0
 t

o
 £

1
2
/1

8
 a

n
d
 £

2
2

to
n
n
e
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 c

e
rt

 w
e
 c

a
n
 n

o
w

 c
la

im
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 a

 8
0
%

 r
e
tu

rn
 

s
p
e
n
d
, 

th
is

 d
e
p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 t

y
p
e
s
 

d
ir
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

re
tu

rn
 f

o
r 

o
u
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 o

n
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
T

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
is

 f
o
r 

£
9
2
4
,0

5
5
k
 t

h
e
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 f

o
r 

a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
£
1
,5

2
3
k
 i
n
 

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 w

ill
re

in
s
u
la

ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 

1
,5

2
3

W
o

o
d

s
e
a
ts

 R
o

a
d

 R
a
il
w

a
y
 B

ri
d

g
e
 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 b

ri
d
g
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 

2
7
0
 

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 
 

 

E
M

T
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
 

 
 

 

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 4

 o
f 
8

 

Page 38



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

 
 

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 D

e
m

o
li
ti

o
n

 C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

is
 f

o
r 

th
e
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

to
ry

 w
o
rk

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
-t

e
n

th
e
 D

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

h
o
m

e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
m

o
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o
 y

e
a
r

c
o
s
ts

 h
a
v
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
s
 p

ro
je

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 t

h
e
s
e

 c
o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 (

£
2
0
k
) 

fr
o
m

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
, 

C
a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e

ip
ts

 f
ro

m

d
e
ri
n
g
 o

f 
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

c
t 

w
h
e
re

 
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 

 a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 

th
e
 s

a
le

 o
f 

la
n
d
 £

4
k
, 

a
n
d
 r

ig
h
t 

to
 b

u
y
 

lit
io

n
 o

f 
e
e
n
 s

e
t 

1
3
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 b

e
 n

e
u
tr

a
l 
o
n
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

-2
5

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

e
f 

S
H

0
3
8
8
2
 

re
c
e
ip

ts
 £

1
k
, 

a
ls

o
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

.
T

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
la

te
 t

o
 D

P
M

 f
e
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

e
tt
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

e
m

o
c
o
u
n
c
il 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
la

te
 t

o
 a

n
y
 o

n
e
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p
ro

je
c
t 

s
o
 h

a
s
 b

u
p
 a

s
 s

ta
n
d
 a

lo
n
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 1

2
/

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 

2
5
 

 

P
a
rk

 G
ra

n
g

e
 D

ri
v
e
 S

h
o

p
s
  

D
e
m

o
li
ti

o
n

T
h
is

 i
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
1
6
 m

a
is

o
n
e
tt
e
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
p
 u

n
it
s
 t

o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 t
h
e
 b

u
n
e
w

 h
o
m

e
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

h
e
ff
ie

ld
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
m

p
a

n
y
. 

£
1
7
k
 w

ill
 p

a
y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 u

ti
lit

d
is

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

a
s
b
e
s
to

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

S
h
e
ff
ie

ld
 H

o
m

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

ri
c
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
s
, 

a
s
 t

h
e
 

i
in

g
 o

f 
ie

s
m

a
n

g
e
d
 b

y
 

e
d
 b

th
e
 

e
n
t.

e
d
 w

rk
 

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 s

e
p
a
ra

te
ly

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 a
b
o
v
e
. 

T
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 £
6
2
k
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

g
e
n
c
y
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

£
3
8
k
 f

ro
m

 u
n
a
p
p
lie

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

ts
. 

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

2
1

o
u
s
in

g
D

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2

ld a

o
ri
g
in

a
l 
c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
n
e
e
d
 t

o
 f

in
d
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 r
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
re

m
a
in

in
g
 r

e
s
id

y

A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

£
2
1
k
 v

a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 r

e
la

t
p
ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
o

1
7

T
h
e
 H

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 5

 o
f 
8

 

Page 39



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

 
 

 

S
T

A
G

E
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
S

: 
A

p
p

ro
v
a
l 

o
f 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
- 

 
 

 

W
id

e
r 

A
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 M

o
o

rf
o

o
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

:-
  

T
h
is

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
rm

s
 t

h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 W

id
e
r 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

in
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
1
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
s
ts

. 

It
 
c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
s
 
th

e
 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
re

a
s
 
o
f 

th
e
 
M

o
o
rf

o
o
t 

b
u
ild

in
g

re
lo

c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

,6
0
0
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

n
 o

ff
ic

e
 

 
to

 
fa

c
ili

ta
te

 
th

e
 

ff
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 b

u
ild

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 a
re

a
s
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 

a
re

 l
e
v
e
ls

 4
 t

o
 1

1
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
s
t 

a
n
d
 W

e
s
t 

w
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
s
t 

w
in

g
, 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 p

u
b
lic

 e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
. 

 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

ro
u
te

 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 b

y
 m

e
a
n

s
 o

f 
a
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

n
o

ti
c
e

 
in

 
th

e
 
O

ff
ic

ia
l 

J
o
u
rn

a
l 

o
f 

th
e
 
E

u
ro

p
e

a
n

 
U

n
io

n
 
(O

J
E

U
) 

in
 
o

rd
e

r 
to

 
s
e

c
u

re
 b

e
s
t 

v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
.

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
S

tr
a

te
g

y
F

u
ll 

c
o
m

p
e

ti
ti
v
e
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

v
ia

 O
J
E

U
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
:-

  

 
 

 

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 6

 o
f 
8

 

Page 40



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

M
il
lh

o
u

s
e
s
 M

il
l 

B
u

il
d

in
g

s

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

:-

n
o

w
n
 a

s
 

n
s
 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
).

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 

C
o

m
p

a
c
t 

e
r 

th
e
 
te

n
d
e
r 

is
 
n
o
t 

v
a

lu
e

 
fo

r 
m

o
n

e
y
, 

a
 
c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
v
e

 
te

n
d
e
r 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.
 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t
S

tr
a

te
g

y
T

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
n
s
is

ts
 o

f 
re

p
a
ir
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

M
ill

 b
u
ild

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 k

M
ill

h
o

u
s
e
s
 M

ill
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
, 

a
d
ja

c
e
n
t 

to
 M

ill
h
o
u

s
e
s
 P

a
rk

 (
s
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 i
n
 A

d
d
it
io

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
R

o
u

te
:-

  
K

ie
r 

- 
J
o
b
s
 C

o
m

p
a
c
t 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 L

o
tt
e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 

c
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

 t
h

a
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

s
. 

 J
o

b
s
 

d
e
a
l 

w
it
h
 K

ie
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 e
m

p
lo

y
s
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t.

  
If

 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 
n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 
w

it
h
 
K

i

E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
S

:-
 

R
iv

e
li

n
 V

a
ll

e
y
 P

la
y
b

u
il

d
e

r 
T

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 

w
a
s
 g

ra
n
te

d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
1
2
5
k

P
la

y
b
u
ild

e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

o
 

, 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
0
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 2

3
 p

la
y
 s

it
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
o
k

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
  

T
h
is

 i
s
 p

re
d
o
m

in
a
te

ly
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h
 f

o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 

 t
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

  

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
is

 s
o
u
g
h
t 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
, 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
a
n
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y

V
a
ri
a
ti
o
n

1
5
0
 

C
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 T

e
n
d
e
r 

 

h
a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

2
2
 s

it
e
s
 b

u
t 

th
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 a
t 

R
iv

e
lin

 t
o

lo
n
g
e
r 

to
 f

in
a
lis

e
. 

  
  

  

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
£
1
5
0
k

(A
H

D
C

) 
G

ra
n
t 

a
n
d
 a

 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l.
  

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 7

 o
f 
8

 

Page 41



B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
a
p
it
a
l

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

S
u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 

 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

 C
P

G
: 
M

a
y
 2

0
1
2
  

G
:\
C

E
X

\L
&

G
\C

o
m

S
e
c
\M

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
\C

a
b

in
e
t\
R

e
p
o
rt

s
\2

0
1
2
\1

1
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
\1

0
 (

a
) 

- 
A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 1
 -

 C
a
p
it
a
l 
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2

0
1

2
-1

3
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
R

e
p
o

rt
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 A

p
p

e
n
d
ix

 1
1

0
7

1
2

 C
le

a
n

.d
o
c
P

a
g

e
 8

 o
f 
8

 

b
e
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
.

 
 

 

T
h

e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o

 D
IR

E
C

T
O

R
 V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

S
 i

n
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
 

 

Page 42



1

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
Cabinet Report 11

Report of:  Simon Green, Executive Director, Place 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:   11 July 2012 
________________________________________________________________________

Subject:  Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 2015
________________________________________________________________________

Author of Report: Ogo Osammor, Air Quality Officer (Tel 0114 2734655)  
________________________________________________________________________

Summary:   

Sheffield aspires to be a city where health inequalities are eliminated and air is healthy for all to 
breathe. Sheffield City Council is committed to help improve the health and wellbeing for the 
people of Sheffield, and ensuring we are an environmentally-responsible city.  A key component 
of this is protecting and improving air quality. 

This report updates Cabinet on the new Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 2015 and seeks 
approval for its implementation. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

Air pollution impacts negatively on Sheffield people’s health and economy as well as contributing 
to climate change.  Sheffield reflects the national picture, in that generally air quality is improving. 
However in many areas, near the motorway and within the busy urban centre, it has not 
improved, with some places seeing air quality worsening.

Reflecting national trends and many other major cities in the UK, Sheffield currently breaches UK 
and European Union thresholds for air quality. There is the potential for the UK government to be 
fined if the EU limits are exceeded past 2015, and the fines imposed could be significant, 
consequently this is a recognised risk for the Council. 

The implementation of this revised Air Quality Action Plan seeks to reduce air pollution in 
Sheffield to achieve national air quality targets and EU limit values by 2015.  This will provide a 
better quality of life for all, particularly those living alongside the city’s main transport corridors 
where exposure to elevated pollution levels is more likely.  

Recommendations:

1. Approve the new Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 2015 for implementation.

2. Allocate a Steering Group and Working Group “champion” to each Action contained in the 
Action Plan, supported by a member of the local community.  

Agenda Item 11

Page 43



2

3. Delegate authority to the Executive Director, Place in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Waste and Streetscene, to take steps considered appropriate to 
implement the approved new Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield subject to any necessary 
funding being identified and due regard being had to the legal implications set out in this 
report.

4. Recognise that the Council’s overall Air Quality Champion will be the Director of Public 
Health as part of their role on the city’s Health and Wellbeing Board.   

5. Agrees that a fully refreshed Air Quality Action Plan will be submitted to Cabinet, following 
the completion of the Low Emission Zone feasibility study, due in autumn 2012.

_________________________________________________________________________

Background Papers: Previous Cabinet Report, ‘Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield’ on 9 
March 2011 

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 44



3

Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 

Financial implications 

YES Cleared by: Chris Nicholson 

Legal implications 

YES Cleared by: Andrew Bullock 

Equality of Opportunity implications

YES Cleared by: Ian Oldershaw 

Tackling Health Inequalities implications 

YES

Human rights implications

NO

Environmental and Sustainability implications 

YES

Economic impact 

YES

Community safety implications 

NO

Human resources implications 

YES

Property implications 

YES/NO

Area(s) affected 

All

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader 

Environment, Waste and Streetscene 

Relevant Scrutiny Board if decision called in 

Culture, Economy and Sustainability Board 

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council? 

No

Press release 

YES

Page 45



4

AIR QUALITY ACTION PLAN FOR SHEFFIELD 2015 

1.0 SUMMARY 

1.1 Sheffield aspires to be a city where health inequalities are eliminated and air is healthy for 
all to breathe. Sheffield City Council is committed to help improve the health and wellbeing 
for the people of Sheffield, and ensuring we are an environmentally-responsible city.  A 
key component of this is protecting and improving air quality. 

1.2 This Action Plan sets out the causes and impacts of air pollution, and proposes seven 
commitments to reduce air pollution in Sheffield and achieve national air quality targets 
and EU limit values by 2015.  These are: 

Action 1: Assess feasibility for a Low Emission Zone

Action 2: Develop infrastructure for refuelling low emission vehicles

Action 5: Mitigate the impact of the M1 motorway (particularly in the 

Tinsley Area)

Action 3: Promote smarter travel choices

Action 4: Improve engine performance of commercial diesel vehicles

Action 6: Develop policies to support better air quality

Action 7: Control industrial emissions 

2.0 WHAT DOES THIS MEAN FOR THE PEOPLE OF SHEFFIELD? 

2.1 Air pollution adversely affects human health, and has recently been estimated to account 
for up to 500 premature deaths per year in Sheffield. Air pollution has short and long term 
health impacts, particularly for respiratory and cardiovascular health, including increased 
hospital admissions. 

2.2 The impact on life expectancy and ill health is unequal, with more effects on the young, 
the old and those with pre-existing heart and lung conditions. For individuals who are 
particularly sensitive and exposed to the most elevated levels of air pollution, the reduction 
in life expectancy is estimated to be as high as nine years.  Overall the adverse effects of 
pollution are such that it has a bigger impact on life expectancy than road traffic accidents 
and passive smoking. 

2.3 Air pollution also has economic health costs of around £160 million per year to society (i.e. 
the impact on Sheffield’s economy as a result of lost working days).  This is likely to be a 
conservative estimate because these figures do not take account of chronic conditions 
linked to air quality such as chronic lung and heart related problems, or secondary costs to 
wider services and families.

2.4 As well as direct effects, these pollutants can be transported great distances by weather 
systems, and combine in the atmosphere to form ozone, a harmful air pollutant and potent 
greenhouse gas.  This contributes to our wider impact on climate change. 

Page 46



5

2.5 By reducing these air pollutants, this action plan will help deliver our commitments as set 
out in the “Standing up for Sheffield Corporate Plan 2011-14”, specifically: 

  Better Health and Wellbeing 

  An Environmentally Responsible City 

  A Great Place to Live 

2.6 Failing to take action on air quality could have financial implications for Sheffield 
taxpayers.  If national air quality targets are not met, the UK government could face EU 
fines, and the recently passed Localism Act provides central government with powers to 
pass those fines on to local authorities if they have failed to take action when they could.  

3.0 OUTCOME AND SUSTAINABILITY 

3.1 This Air Quality Action Plan aims to achieve the following outcomes: 

We want to reduce nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particle (PM10) pollution 
in Sheffield in order to improve the health of local people, by protecting 
areas of low air pollution and improving areas where pollution is elevated. 

We aim to contribute to the reduction of greenhouse gases and assist in the 
delivery of the City Strategy and the Council’s Corporate Plan outcomes. 

3.2 This Action Plan sets out the committed actions of the Local Authority and its partners in 
addressing local air pollutants as required by Central Government.  

3.2 The plan draws on and will contribute to numerous other local priorities such as the 
Sheffield Carbon Reduction Framework, the City Strategy, the South Yorkshire Local 
Transport Plan, the Sheffield Transport Vision, the Sheffield City Region (SCR) Transport 
Strategy 2011 – 2026 and the Decentralised Energy Strategy. 

4.0  REPORT 

4.1 Please see the attached Executive Summary and full version of the Air Quality Action 
Plan, which sets out the causes and impacts of air pollution in Sheffield and provides 
further detail of the proposed actions. 

4.2.0 Legal Implications 

4.2.1 Under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995, Local Authorities are required to review and 
assess air quality in their areas and to report against objectives for specified pollutants1 of 
concern, to the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA).

4.2.2 Action to manage and improve air quality is required by European Union (EU) 
legislation. The 2008 ambient air quality directive (2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits 
for concentrations in outdoor air of major air pollutants that impact public health including 
particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2).   

4.2.3 As part of this process, Sheffield City Council declared an Air Quality Management Area 
across the whole of the urban area of the city for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles 
(PM10) in March 2010, following a report to Cabinet2. This declaration was based on the 

1
 Environment Act 1995  

2
 Air Quality Management in Sheffield, Sheffield City Council Cabinet Report 13 January 2010 Page 47



6

evidence reported in the formal Detailed Assessment (2008) and Updating and Screening 
Assessment (2009) reports respectively, to DEFRA, showing areas of Sheffield where 
NO2 and PM10 amounts are likely to breach national and EU legislation. 

4.2.4 This means that the Council is now required to produce an Air Quality Action Plan to cover 
the period (up) to 2015, with the aim of improving nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and PM10 levels, 
such that the annual limit of 40µg.m-3 for NO2 and the daily limit of 50µg.m-3 for PM10

(which is not to be exceeded more than 35 times a year) do not continue to be breached.

4.2.5 Not achieving the air quality targets nationally means not complying with EU law and 
consequently, this is a risk for the Council. There is the potential for the UK government to 
be fined if EU limit values are exceeded.  Potentially the fines which can be imposed are 
significant. The reserve powers in the Localism Act to passport EU fines to local 
authorities and public bodies (where they have failed to take action when they could) is 
significant and helps to highlight the need for a clear line of sight between EU obligations 
and Local Authority responsibilities to improve air quality and provide clarity on the role 
local authorities play. The government however, can only pass the fines on if they can 
show that we have not taken appropriate steps to comply with EU law. 

4.2.6 Where appropriate, further approvals or consents may need to be obtained in order to 
develop and implement specific proposals contained within the Air Quality Action Plan. 
Where the proposal relates to a licensing function such approval will need to be obtained 
from the relevant Council committee and in certain circumstances external approval may 
be required, for example from the Traffic Commissioner. Where further approvals are 
required in accordance with the Council’s constitution and / or legislation, implementation 
of the proposal in question will be subject to obtaining such approval.

4.3.0 Public Consultation  

4.3.1 A public consultation exercise was undertaken in 2011, and strong support was shown for 
the Action Plan’s aspirations to reduce emissions from traffic, encourage public transport 
use and to actively promote improvements in engine technology and the use of less 
polluting fuels.   

4.3.2 Respondents ranged from individuals to community groups and public and private sector 
organisations.  They ranked activities in order of preference, as well as suggesting some 
additional measures.  The results of this consultation have been incorporated into this 
Action Plan. 

4.4.0 Financial Implications 

4.4.1 The financial and economic implications to Sheffield City Council of the Air Quality Action 
Plan measures and actions have been considered and evaluated. The majority of the 
current actions being implemented to improve air quality are funded from existing budgets 
and programmes. Limited funding has also been made available annually through DEFRA 
Air Quality Grant for specific projects.    

4.4.2 Funding has been, and continues to be, sought from Central Government sources and 
grants, for example, from the South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan, South Yorkshire 
Local Sustainable Transport Fund and DEFRA Air Quality Grant.  

4.5.0 Equal Opportunities Implications

4.5.1 An Equality Impact Assessment has been conducted. It concludes that the new Air Quality 
Action Plan will be of universal positive benefit to all Sheffield people regardless of age, 

Page 48



7

sex, race, faith, disability, sexuality, etc. No negative equality impacts were identified.  In 
addition the most vulnerable members of the community, that is, those with health 
problems, the old and the very young, whom are those most affected by poor air quality, 
will particularly benefit from the proposal. The implementation of the Action Plan will help 
to restore environmental equity to individuals most affected. 

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

5.1 To continue implementing the existing 2003 Air Quality Action Plan, after incorporating 
fine particles (PM10) that we have identified as being an additional pollutant to tackle. 
However, it was considered that this action would not have the required impact needed to 
meet national air quality targets, EU limit values and protect health. 

5.2 Doing nothing. However, this would mean that Sheffield would risk a possible fine, 
particularly if no additional efforts to tackle the problem were made, if the national air 
quality targets and EU limit values are exceeded by 2015. 

5.3 Attempting to reduce emissions from traffic by using some form of demand management 
measure.  However, this may still not deliver the required air quality targets and EU limit 
values by 2015 and would also have a negative impact on Sheffield’s economy, working 
against the wider aims of the Corporate Plan. 

6.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

6.1 Air pollution impacts negatively on Sheffield people’s health and economy and contributes 
to climate change.  Sheffield reflects the national picture, in that generally air quality is 
improving. However in many areas, near the motorway and within the busy urban centre, 
it has not improved, with some places seeing air quality worsening.

6.2 Reflecting national trends and many other major cities in the UK, Sheffield currently 
breaches UK and European Union thresholds for air quality. There is the potential for the 
UK government to be fined if the EU limits are exceeded past 2015, and the fines imposed 
could be significant, consequently this is a recognised risk for the Council. 

6.3 The implementation of this revised Air Quality Action Plan seeks to reduce air pollution in 
Sheffield to achieve national air quality targets and EU limit values by 2015.  This will 
provide a better quality of life for all, particularly those living alongside the city’s main 
transport corridors where exposure to elevated pollution levels is more likely.

7.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 Approve the new Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 2015 for implementation.

7.2 Allocate a Steering Group and Working Group “champion” to each Action contained in the 
Action Plan, supported by a member of the local community.  

7.3 Delegate authority to the Executive Director, Place in consultation with the Cabinet 
Member for Environment, Waste and Streetscene, to take steps considered appropriate to 
implement the approved new Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield subject to any necessary 
funding being identified and due regard being had to the legal implications set out in this 
report.

7.4 Recognise that the Council’s overall Air Quality Champion will be the Director of Public 
Health as part of their role on the city’s Health and Wellbeing Board.   

Page 49



8

7.5 Agrees that a fully refreshed Air Quality Action Plan will be submitted to Cabinet, following 
the completion of the Low Emission Zone feasibility study, due in autumn 2012.

Simon Green 
Executive Director, Place            June 2012

Page 50



Air Quality 
Action Plan 

2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Foreword

Breathing healthy air is a crucial component of health and well being.  Sheffield 

City Council and Health Colleagues want to work ensure healthy air for all. 

Locally and nationally air quality has generally been improving. However, in the 

most polluted areas, near motorways and within busy urban centres, it has not 

improved (or has even worsened). Sheffield, like many other major cities in the 

UK, currently breaches national and European thresholds for air quality.  

This Air Quality Action Plan proposes a suite of effective actions to protect 

peoples’ health. A House of Commons report1 on air quality said: “The cost 

benefit is clear; what we need now is the political will to make this a priority and 

to commit the resources to address it now so that we can reap the benefits of 

improved health.” 

The cause of air pollution in the City is largely due to both road transport and 

industry, and to a lesser extent, other processes that burn fossil fuels, such as 

commercial or domestic heating systems (e.g. gas boilers).  

The purpose of this plan is to set out the committed actions of the Local 

Authority and its partners in addressing local air pollutants as required by 

Central Government. This plan sets out a vision which aims to: 

  Achieve national health-based air quality targets by 2015, 

  Protect areas where air pollution is low, and  

  Improve areas where air pollution is elevated. 

By achieving these aims the health of people in Sheffield will be improved. 

In addition to our main objectives, this work will support and help us achieve a 

number of other priorities for the City, including the reduction of greenhouse 

gases.  

Poor air quality adversely affects human health, and has recently been 

estimated to account for up to 500 premature deaths per year in Sheffield, with 

health costs of around £160 million per year2. It has short and long-term health 

impacts, particularly for respiratory and cardiovascular health, including 

increased admissions to hospital. 

The impact of air quality on life expectancy and health is unequal, with the 

young, the old and those with pre-existing heart and lung conditions more 

affected. Individuals who are particularly sensitive and exposed to the most 

elevated levels of pollution, have an estimated reduction in life expectancy of as 

much as nine years. 

                                            
1
 Environmental Audit Committee - Fifth Report Air Quality, Summary, printed 16 March 2010 

2
 Sheffield City Council’s interpretation of the Evidence of Robert Vaughn from DEFRA to 

Environment Select Committee 2010 accessed at 

http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/environmental-

audit-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/air-quality-a-follow-up-report/  

 

Page 52



A key message from leading respiratory and cardio-vascular physicians as well 

as environmental health experts; is that modest reductions in pollution would 

lead to significant health gains. Overall, the adverse effects of poor air quality 

are such that it has a bigger impact on life expectancy than road traffic 

accidents or passive smoking. 

The challenge is not an easy one and there is a need for both local and national 

commitment and action.  The House of Commons Environmental Audit 

Committee3 is keen to see more action taken to improve air quality and protect 

human health.  

An ambitious set of local measures have been outlined in this plan, which when 

fully implemented should lead to a significant reduction in levels of nitrogen 

dioxide (NO2), and fine particles (PM10) in the air. These actions will help the 

Council work towards achieving air quality standards in the city by 2015; helping 

to reduce health effects caused by air pollution. 

We will carefully monitor progress on this plan and regularly assess whether 

further and stronger local action or national policy measures and interventions 

are necessary.   

A modern, vibrant city needs to have a high-quality local environment, including 

cleaner air and cleaner transport, for the benefit of local people, and in order to 

attract people to the city for work and leisure.  

Sheffield aspires to be a city where health inequalities are reduced and air is 

healthy for all to breathe. 

 

Councillor Jack Scott  

Cabinet Member for Environment, Recycling and Streetscene 

                                            
3
 Environmental Audit Committee - Ninth Report Air quality: A follow up report 

 

Page 53



 

Contents 

 Page

Executive Summary 5 

1   Introduction 13 

2   What does this plan aim to achieve? 16 

3   What is the impact of elevated air pollution? 16 

  Health 16 

  Economy 17 

  Climate Change 17 

4   What causes elevated air pollution? 17 

5   What are we already doing? 18 

6   How will this plan improve air quality? 20 

  Summary 20 

  Commitments in detail 21 

o Action 1 - Assess feasibility for a Low Emission Zone 21 

o Action 2: Develop infrastructure for refuelling low emission vehicles 23 

o Action 3: Promote smarter travel choices 24 

o Action 4: Improve engine performance of commercial diesel vehicles 26 

o Action 5: Mitigate the impact of the M1 motorway on air quality 

(particularly in the Tinsley Area) 
27 

o Action 6: Develop policies to support better air quality 28 

o Action 7: Control industrial emissions 30 

7   How we will assess progress 30 

8   Our duties within the legal framework 32 

9   How we will tackle the wider causes 33 

10 Background 34 

  Air Quality and Health 34 

  Inequality and Air Pollution Related Ill Health 37 

  The Scale of the Problem in Sheffield 38 

  Controlling the Sources of Air Pollution 39 

  Air Quality Action Plan 2003 40 

  Consultation on the Air Quality Action Plan for 2015 40 

11 Appendix 1 - Source apportionment for pollutants 42 

12 Appendix 2 – Air Quality Champions 45 

13 Appendix 3 - Low Emissions Zone Feasibility Study 46 

14 Appendix 4 - Upgrading vehicles to low emissions fuels 48 

15 Appendix 5 - Traffic Flow 50 

 

Page 54



 

Air Quality Action Plan 2015 

Executive Summary 

Sheffield aspires to be a city where health inequalities are reduced and air is 

healthy for all to breathe. Sheffield City Council is committed to help improve 

the health and wellbeing for the people of Sheffield, and ensuring we are an 

environmentally-responsible city.  A key component of this is protecting and 

improving air quality. 

Air quality is about the level of air pollution. When we say acceptable air quality 

we mean a low level of air pollutants, specifically nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and 

fine particles (PM10) as these have a key impact on public health. Unacceptable 

air quality exists where these pollutants exceed National and European Union 

thresholds. We will make sure air quality does not exceed EU limit values to 

protect the health of people of Sheffield. 

Air quality in Sheffield 

Sheffield reflects the national picture, in that generally air quality is improving. 

However in many areas, near the motorway and within the busy urban centre, it 

has not improved, with some places seeing air quality worsening.  

Reflecting national trends and many other major cities in the UK, Sheffield 

currently breaches UK and European Union thresholds4 for air quality. 

Exceeding national air quality targets means not complying with EU law. There 

is the potential for the UK government to be fined if the EU limits are exceeded 

past 2015, consequently this is a risk for the Council. 

In Sheffield both nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) are monitored 

at key sites within the urban area. Nitrogen dioxide levels at many sites are 

below the EU threshold for 20155 however some locations show higher 

concentrations which are unacceptable. These sites experience a high volume 

of diesel vehicles, particularly buses and taxis which pass through this route. 

Annual average levels of fine particles (PM10) are consistently below EU 

thresholds for 20156, however this masks daily average levels which are subject 

to EU limits. Our data tells us some locations exceed this limit more times than 

is acceptable in one year7. This plan covers actions to reduce both pollutants. 

                                            
4
 The 2008 ambient air quality directive (2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits for 

concentrations in outdoor air of major air pollutants that impact public health including 

particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2).  
5
 Figure 4, page 15 

6
 Figure 5, page 15 

7
 Based on 2008 data 

5 

Page 55



What does this plan aim to achieve? 

 

We aim to contribute to the reduction of greenhouse gases and assist in the 

delivery of the City Strategy and the Council’s Corporate Plan outcomes. 

We want to reduce nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particle (PM10) pollution 

in Sheffield in order to improve the health of local people; by protecting 

areas of low air pollution and improving areas where pollution is elevated. 

This revised Air Quality Action Plan aims to reduce air pollution in Sheffield and 

achieve national air quality targets and EU limit values by 2015.  

This will provide a better quality of life for all, particularly those living alongside 

the city’s main transport corridors where exposure to elevated pollution levels is 

more likely. This can be achieved by acting to reduce the emissions of air 

pollutants created mainly from the burning of fossil fuels, particularly from 

vehicles on our roads.  

This plan sets out the commitments of Sheffield City Council and its partners to 

address local air pollutants by 2015. These commitments will help to deliver our 

ambitions for the environment as set out in “Standing up for Sheffield”, the 

Council’s Corporate Plan 2011-14 by contributing to the outcomes areas of: 

  Better Health and Wellbeing 

  An Environmentally Responsive City 

  A Great Place to Live 

What is the impact of elevated air pollution? 

Health

Air pollution adversely affects human health, and has recently been estimated 

to account for up to 500 premature deaths per year in Sheffield. Poor air quality 

has short and long term health impacts, particularly for respiratory and 

cardiovascular health, including increased hospital admissions. 

Overall the adverse effects of elevated air pollution are such that it has a bigger 

impact on life expectancy than road traffic accidents and passive smoking8. 

The impact on life expectancy and health is unequal, with more effects on the 

young, the old and those with pre-existing heart and lung conditions. Individuals 

who are particularly sensitive and exposed to the most elevated levels of 

pollution, have an estimated reduction in life expectancy as high as nine years.   

Economy 

Air pollution has economic health costs of around £160 million per year9 to 

society (i.e. the impact on Sheffield’s economy as a result of lost working days).  

                                            
8
 Department of Health, EV 142 

9
 Sheffield City Council interpretation of the Evidence of Robert Vaughn from DEFRA to 

Environment Select Committee 2010 accessed at 
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/environmental-
audit-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/air-quality-a-follow-up-report/ 

6 

Page 56



This is likely to be a conservative estimate because these figures do not take 

account of chronic conditions linked to air quality such as chronic lung and heart 

related problems, or secondary costs to wider services and families.   

Climate Change 

As well as direct effects, these pollutants can be transported great distances by 

weather systems, and combine in the atmosphere to form ozone, a harmful air 

pollutant and potent greenhouse gas.  This contributes to our wider impact on 

climate change. 

What causes elevated air pollution? 

Road transport and industrial sources cause 85% of the pollutants in the city. 

Other processes that contribute are those that burn fossil fuels, such as 

commercial or domestic heating systems (e.g. gas boilers). Heavy diesel 

vehicles make up only about 7% of total traffic, but create 35% of the cities total 

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and 19% of fine particles (PM10). 

Road transport accounts for 50% of the oxides of nitrogen (NOx
10); with a 

further 35% from regulated industrial sources.11 

45% of the fine particles (PM10) found in Sheffield’s air comes from regulated 

industrial sources, with a further 40% from road traffic (see Figure 1). 

Heavy diesel vehicles create 70% of the nitrogen dioxide (NO2) emitted from 

transport and 48% of fine particles (PM10). 

Figure 1  

50%

35%

15%

Road Traffic

Industrial Point Sources

Area Sources (domestic & commercial)

Sources of NOx

emissions in Sheffield

Source: Airviro Computer Model & 
Emissions Data Bases DA20,05 ref20,12b

40%

45%

15%

Road Traffic

Industrial Point Sources

Area Sources (domestic & commercial)

Sources of PM10

emissions in Sheffield

Source: Emissions Data Base (EDB) using 
EDB DA20,05  

                                            
10

 NOx converts to NO2 in the air 
11

 See Appendix 1 - Source apportionment for pollutants for further details (page 42) 

7 

Page 57



What are we already doing? 

The existing Air Quality Action Plan from 2003 is currently the main plan for 

reducing air pollution in Sheffield. The 2003 plan took a very broad view and 

incorporated multiple actions and measures across a wide range of areas. 

Whilst this reduced nitrogen dioxide (NO2) emissions, levels did not decline 

sufficiently to achieve national standards and EU Limit Values. 

Ongoing monitoring shows areas in Sheffield where nitrogen dioxide (NO2) or 

fine particles (PM10) amounts are likely to breach national and EU legislation. 

As such an Air Quality Management Area (Figure 2) was declared across the 

whole of the urban area of the city for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles 

(PM10) in March 2010, following approval by Cabinet12.  

Figure 2  

 

The declaration of the management area means the Council is required to 

produce an Air Quality Action Plan to cover the period up to 2015, with the aim 

of reducing levels of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) to below 

EU thresholds13. 

This plan has been led by the City Council and informed by a multidisciplinary 

group (the Air Quality Action Plan Working Group); including representatives 

from the local community, the Highways Agency, Environment Agency, health 

colleagues and South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE). 

                                            
12

 Air Quality Management in Sheffield, Sheffield City Council Cabinet Report 13 January 2010 
13

 Annual limit of 40µg.m
-3

 for NO2 and the daily limit of 50µg.m
-3 

for PM10 (which is not to be 

exceeded more than 35 times a year) do not continue to be breached 

8 

Page 58



How will this plan improve air quality? 

We have set out 7 commitments and because of the tight regulation already in 

place for the main-polluting industrial processes we will concentrate on tackling 

pollution from road transport. This source remains under-regulated and the City 

Council and its partners must take action to ensure that emissions are 

reduced14. 

Public Consultation 

This approach was reinforced in a public consultation exercise, undertaken in 

2011. Strong support was shown for our aspiration to reduce emissions from 

traffic, encourage public transport use and to actively promote improvements in 

engine technology and the use of less polluting fuels. 

Respondents ranged from individuals to community groups and public and 

private sector organisations.  They ranked activities in order of preference, as 

well as suggesting some additional measures. 

Our commitments 

We took these responses alongside our estimation of their impact on air quality 

to develop our key actions, shown in Figure 3. 

The order of the actions below reflects the likely impact on improving air quality. 

If fully implemented the most effective actions together could achieve the EU 

and DEFRA objectives for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10).  

Some of these actions are already happening, which we will continue to 

improve.  Others are in the early planning stages and we (like other major cities) 

need to decide whether they would have the desired impact in Sheffield. 

Figure 3 Our commitments 

Action 1: Assess feasibility for a Low Emission Zone 

Action 2: Develop infrastructure for refuelling low emission vehicles 

Action 5: Mitigate the impact of the M1 motorway (particularly in the 

Tinsley Area) 

Action 3: Promote smarter travel choices 

Action 4: Improve engine performance of commercial diesel vehicles 

Action 6: Develop policies to support better air quality 

 
Action 7: Control industrial emissions 

                                            
14

 Environment Act 1995  

9 

Page 59



Action 1 - Assess feasibility for a Low Emission Zone 

We are undertaking a detailed feasibility and modelling study to demonstrate 

the costs and potential air quality improvements of introducing a Low Emission 

Zone. This is a geographically defined area, subject to enforcement powers, 

where operators of vehicles must comply with a specified low emissions policy. 

The zone would encourage operators, particularly of lorries (HGVs) and buses 

to move to alternative fuel sources and improved engine performance vehicles. 

The hybrid Stagecoach Buses are one example of such a change. We are also 

working with the bus companies to formulate a voluntary strategy to reduce 

vehicle idling and to progress the commitment for 100% low floor buses which 

will get higher Euro Star engines in place. 

The feasibility study will set out how the scheme could operate and the potential 

costs to both the City Council and affected businesses and transport operators. 

Enforcement will require an agreement with bus operators about vehicle 

emissions and replacement, and implementing an emissions policy for Taxi 

Licensing (these are covered in Action 4: Improving the engine performance of 

commercial diesel vehicles).  

Action 2: Develop infrastructure for refuelling low emission vehicles 

We will enable commercial operators and the wider public to switch to cleaner 

fuel such as electric or gas15, through the development of a gas refuelling site 

and electric vehicle recharging sites across South Yorkshire. The development 

of this infrastructure is subject to successful funding bids16. Any low emission 

vehicles working in Sheffield would be able to refuel at these sites and could 

also operate within a Low Emission Zone, if implemented.   

We will work with partners to develop other energy alternatives for the city, such 

as hydrogen. We will also promote and encourage the uptake of low emission 

vehicles through a positive marketing and promotion programme 

Action 3: Promote smarter travel choices 

We will encourage changes to the way people travel by improving public 

transport and marketing services such as travel awareness campaigns, setting 

up websites for car share schemes, supporting car clubs and encouraging 

teleworking. We will also establish a Bus Partnership Agreement as part of our 

efforts to help improve smarter travel choices (modal shift). This will remove 

some of the buses on the network, reduce congestion and air pollution. We will 

develop specific schemes to get employees to and from work and children to 

and from school, such as ‘Bike It’ which promotes cycling through schools.  

The first principles of reducing the need to travel by car would be to ensure that 

all destinations are accessible to public transport, walking and cycling to ensure 

the provision of alternatives to the car. This includes developing Park and Ride 

                                            
15

 (bio-methane or compressed natural gas) 
16

 Bids have been submitted to the South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan, Local Sustainable 

Transport Fund and European Regional Development Fund 

10 

Page 60



schemes, journey planning tools, cycle paths, cycle storage and better 

footpaths, subject to a successful funding bid17. We will also be investing in 

public transport, such as the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Northern Route18 and 

support the implementation of the Government-led 2 year Tram-Train pilot 

scheme19 to promote innovation in sustainable travel, improve reliability and 

increase modal shift from cars to tram. 

Action 4: Improve engine performance of commercial diesel vehicles 

We will encourage cleaner fleets, by enhancing the South Yorkshire ECO Stars 

Fleet Recognition Scheme, subject to a successful funding bid8. This is a free, 

voluntary scheme where operators of commercial diesel vehicles20 are 

assessed and ranked on fuel saving and sustainable activities across their 

transport fleet. ECO Stars rate individual vehicles and the whole fleet for their 

overall transport operation. 

Currently, thousands of lorries, vans and buses operating across South 

Yorkshire are included in the scheme and are making fuel savings which result 

in reduced emissions. The Council fleet (currently 680 vehicles) has a 3-Stars 

ECO Star rating, which we are seeking to improve over 2012/13.  

We are also assessing the introduction of an emissions policy for the vehicles 

we license, either as private hire or hackney carriages (taxis). This aims to 

facilitate the replacement of all old and more polluting taxis with newer and less 

polluting ones by 2017. 

Action 5: Mitigate the impact of the M1 motorway (particularly in the 

Tinsley Area) 

Our efforts on mitigating the impact of the M1 are dependent on national 

Government and without their commitment, it is unlikely that we can adequately 

address air quality in Tinsley.  At present, we believe the introduction of speed 

management will improve air quality around the M1 motorway.  As such, the 

Council will continue to lobby the Department for Transport (DfT) to reduce and 

enforce a speed limit on the M1 through Tinsley, and to work with us to develop 

alternative actions that would improve air quality. 

The Government have announced their Managed Motorway programme will go 

ahead on the M1 through Sheffield and proposes to reduce congestion by using 

the hard shoulder to increase capacity for the motorway. If this also results in an 

increase in traffic, air pollution will almost certain worsen. As such, we want this 

programme to include a reduced speed limit, particularly when air pollution is 

expected to be elevated, such as peak traffic times and in certain weather 

conditions. 

                                            
17

 Bid made to the Local Sustainable Transport Fund 
18

 http://www.sy-busrapidtransit.co.uk/default.asp?pageid=3&groupid=3 
19

 http;//www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-south-yorkshire-18100674 
20

 Commercial diesel vehicles are defined as goods vehicles (lorries), buses and coaches 

11 

Page 61



12 

                                           

We will also develop alternative actions that would improve air quality around 

the M1, particularly in the Tinsley area. 

Action 6: Develop policies to support better air quality 

We will introduce and enforce a planning policy to ensure that for significant 

developments notable resulting loss of air quality would be appropriately 

mitigated. 

We will expect all new developments to implement or support actions that make 

a positive contribution to improving air quality, such as by reducing the demand 

for fuel consumption. We are working to develop an anaerobic digestion plant 

(to complement Action 2) that will enable gas powered vehicles to be used for 

deliveries that we could condition in planning applications. 

We will also improve the current travel planning process, help to expand car 

club options and parking schemes for low emission vehicles, to promote 

smarter travel choices. 

We will integrate policies for spatial and transport planning to reduce travel 

demand and open up possibilities for walking and cycling.  

Action 7: Control industrial emissions 

We will work closely with the Environment Agency and industries controlled by 

Sheffield City Council to ensure permits are granted and enforced to reduce 

emissions. Efforts to further control emissions by upgrading processes are 

ongoing at regulated sites, with improvements required as new pollution 

reduction technology is available.

How we will measure success? 

Overall, we will measure success through decreasing levels of nitrogen dioxide 

(NO2) and fine particles (PM10) at key sites in the city, improving people’s health 

and achieving air quality objectives in the city by 2015. 

We will need to carefully monitor progress on the Action Plan and regularly 

assess our achievements in order to determine whether further and stronger 

local action or national policy measures and interventions are necessary.  

Progress against these measures will be regularly monitored and reviewed 

through the Council’s performance management framework, incorporating these 

targets into the 2012/13 Business Plan for Development Services. 

We will follow Government guidance, as detailed in Local Air Quality 

Management Policy Guidance21, and report to the Secretary of State (DEFRA) 

on our progress, any improvements in air quality and any challenges 

experienced. We will also produce an Annual Progress / Monitoring Report 

each year from April 2013. 

 
21

 LAGM.PG(O9): Part IV of the Environment Act 1995: LOCAL AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 

Policy Guidance (PG09), February 2009 Page 62



Air Quality Action Plan 2015 

1 Introduction 

1.1 Sheffield aspires to be a city where health inequalities are reduced and 

air is healthy for all to breathe.  

1.2 Sheffield City Council is committed to help improve the health and 

wellbeing for the people of Sheffield, and ensuring we are an 

environmentally-responsible city.  A key component of this is protecting 

and improving air quality. 

What is Air Quality and why is this important? 

1.3 Air quality is about the level of air pollution. When we say acceptable air 

quality we mean a low level of air pollutants, specifically nitrogen dioxide 

(NO2) and fine particles (PM10). Unacceptable air quality exists where 

these pollutants exceed National and European Union thresholds. 

1.4 We also refer to nitrogen oxides (NOx) and other fine particles (PM2.5) 

within this plan. This is because nitrogen oxides (NOx) convert to 

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in the air and fine particles (PM2.5) are a smaller 

fraction found within the larger fine particles (PM10), which have a 

particular impact on air quality-related ill health. 

1.5 Elevated levels of air pollution have a negative impact on our health, 

particularly on the young and the elderly, resulting in significant levels of 

illness, early death and financial costs to the NHS and wider society. 

1.6 Central Government has consistently predicted air quality will improve as 

vehicle technology improves. In reality this has not occurred as forecast 

improvements on emission levels have been shown to be over-optimistic  

1.7 Our air pollution modelling work22 shows that the areas of concern are 

those particularly close to busy roads, especially where the annual 

average daily traffic flow is greater than 17,000 vehicles per day and at 

busy junctions. 

Air quality in Sheffield 

1.8 Sheffield reflects the national picture, in that generally air quality is 

improving. However in many areas, near the motorway and within the 

busy urban centre, it has not improved, with some places seeing air 

quality worsening. 

                                            
22

 Progress report to DEFRA 2008 

13 

Page 63



1.9 Again, this reflects national trends and so like many other major cities in 

the UK, Sheffield currently breaches National and European Union 

thresholds23 for air quality.  

1.10 Given the continued rise in emissions, it is clear that we must achieve 

greater impact from the actions we implement. 

1.11 The first Air Quality Action Plan was published by Sheffield City Council 

in 2003 to address breaches in nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels. Many of 

the actions in the 2003 plan were dependent on national policy and 

therefore outside of what the Council could achieve. As such it was 

unable to deliver sufficient reductions in this pollutant to reach acceptable 

air quality standards. 

1.12 In Sheffield three air quality objectives are currently exceeded: 

  A long term objective24, the annual average level of nitrogen dioxide 

(NO2); 

  A short term objective, the hourly mean level of nitrogen dioxide 

(NO2); and 

  The 24 hour mean level for fine particles (PM10). 

1.13 Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels are so high in some areas of the Sheffield 

that without major interventions the objectives are unlikely to be achieved 

until at least 2020. These areas are adjacent to arterial routes into the 

city where there are large numbers of heavy diesel vehicles. This is of 

major concern where there are people living close to the roads. 

1.14 Figure 4 shows nitrogen dioxide (NO2) concentrations monitored at a 

sample of key sites in the Sheffield urban area. This shows 

concentrations are following different trends at the different sites.  

1.15 The locations at Fitzalan Square and Romon Haymarket, at Waingate, 

S1 experience some of the highest levels of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) 

concentrations in the city and the annual average at these sites breaches 

EU threshold for 2015. These particular sites have a high proportion of 

diesel vehicles, particularly buses and taxis using these routes. 

1.16 We also know a few areas can exceed the hourly nitrogen dioxide (NO2) 

limits at peak traffic times or in certain weather conditions, and other sites 

where the data is modelled indicates that this may also be exceeded. As 

such, our focus is to achieve EU limits for both annual and hourly levels. 

 

 

                                            
23

 The 2008 ambient air quality directive (2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits for 

concentrations in outdoor air of major air pollutants that impact public health including 

particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2).  
24

 Local Air Quality Management Technical Guidance LAQM.TG(09) p1-3.  

14 

Page 64



Figure 4 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

1995 2000 2005 2010 2015

N
it

ro
g

e
n

 D
io

x
id

e
 µ

g
/m

3

Year

Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2) Trends at key sites in Sheffield

Sheffield Centre Lowfield School Romon Haymarket, S1

Fitzalan Square Tinsley Infant School EU Threshold for 2015

 

1.17 Fine particles (PM10) are measured at a limited number of locations in 

Sheffield. Although Figure 5 (page 15) demonstrates that the annual 

averages are significantly below the EU threshold for 2015 it is the daily 

variations that are of concern with this pollutant. 

1.18 The EU threshold for 2015 is to ensure the daily average levels of fine 

particles (PM10) do not exceed 50 µg.m-3
. However, our results showed 

that concentrations were higher than this more times than the acceptable 

limit (35 days within a year)25. As such fine particles have been included 

within this plan and as a key pollutant within the Air Quality Management 

Area. 

Figure 5  

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

1995 2000 2005 2010 2015

N
it

ro
g

e
n

 D
io

x
id

e
 µ

g
/m

3

Year

Fine Particle (PM10) Trends at key sites in Sheffield

Sheffield Centre Lowfield School

Romon Haymarket EU Threshold for 2015
 

                                            
25

 Based on 2008 monitoring data 

15 

Page 65



2 What does this plan aim to achieve? 

 

We aim to contribute to the reduction of greenhouse gases and assist in 

the delivery of the City Strategy and the Council’s Corporate Plan 

outcomes. 

We want to reduce nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particle (PM10)

pollution in Sheffield in order to improve the health of local people; by 

protecting areas of low air pollution and improving areas where pollution 

is elevated.  

2.1 This revised Air Quality Action Plan for 2015 aims to reduce air pollution 

in Sheffield and achieve national air quality targets and EU thresholds by 

2015. This will provide a better quality of life for all, particularly those 

living alongside the city’s main transport corridors, where exposure to 

elevated pollution levels is more likely.  

2.2 This can be achieved by acting to reduce the emissions of air pollutants 

created from the burning of fossil fuels, particularly the engines of 

vehicles on our roads.  

2.3 The purpose of this plan is to set out the commitments of Sheffield City 

Council and its partners to address local air pollutants by 2015. These 

commitments will help to deliver our ambitions for the environment set 

out in “Standing up for Sheffield”, the Council’s Corporate Plan 2011-14 

contributing to the outcomes: 

  Better Health and Wellbeing 

  An Environmentally Responsive City 

  A Great Place to Live 

2.4 Not achieving the air quality targets nationally means not complying with 

EU law. There is the potential for the UK government to be fined if the EU 

limit values are exceeded past 2015, consequently this is a risk for the 

Council. The government however, can only pass the fines on if they can 

show that we have not taken appropriate steps to comply with EU law. 

2.5 The reserve powers of the Localism Act to passport EU fines to local 

authorities and public bodies (where they failed to take action when they 

could) highlights the link between EU obligations and the Local Authority 

responsibilities to improve air quality. 

3 What is the impact of elevated air pollution? 

Health

3.1 Air pollution adversely affects human health, and has recently been 

estimated to account for up to 500 premature deaths per year in 

Sheffield; Poor air quality has short and long term health impacts, 

16 

Page 66



particularly for respiratory and cardiovascular health, including increased 

hospital admissions. 

3.2 The impact on life expectancy and ill health is unequal, with more effects 

on the young, the old and those with pre-existing heart and lung 

conditions. For individuals who are particularly sensitive and exposed to 

the most elevated levels of air pollution, the reduction in life expectancy 

is estimated to be as high as nine years.   

3.3 Overall the adverse effects of elevated air pollution are such that it has a 

bigger impact on life expectancy than road traffic accidents and passive 

smoking, see Table 1 below: 

Table 1 Comparing the impact on life expectancy from 

reductions in fine particles PM2.5
26

 
Reduction in 

PM2.5

Elimination of 
road traffic 
accidents

Elimination of 
passive
smoking

Expected gain in life 
expectancy 

7-8 months 1-3 months 2-3 months 

Source: Department of Health, EV 142

Economy 

3.4 Air pollution also has economic health costs of around £160 million per 

year27 to society (i.e. the impact on Sheffield’s economy as a result of lost 

working days).   

3.5 This is likely to be a conservative estimate because these figures do not 

take account of chronic conditions linked to air quality such as chronic 

lung and heart-related problems, or secondary costs to wider services 

and families.  

Climate Change 

3.6 As well as direct effects, these pollutants can be transported great 

distances by weather systems, and combine in the atmosphere to form 

ozone, a harmful air pollutant and potent greenhouse gas.  This 

contributes to our wider impact on climate change. 

4 What causes elevated air pollution? 

4.1 Road transport and industrial sources cause 85% of the pollutants in the 

city. Other processes that contribute are those that burn fossil fuels, such 

                                            
26

 PM10 particles contain PM2.5 particles, however the PM2.5 particles can be measured 

separately and penetrates further into the lungs, which is why they are used when assessing 

health impacts 
27

 Sheffield City Council interpretation of the Evidence of Robert Vaughn from DEFRA to 

Environment Select Committee 2010 accessed at 

http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/environmental-

audit-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/air-quality-a-follow-up-report/  

17 

Page 67



as commercial or domestic heating systems (e.g. gas boilers). Heavy 

diesel vehicles make up only about 7% of total traffic, but create 35% of 

the cities nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and 19% of fine particles (PM10). 

4.2 Road transport accounts for 50% of the oxides of nitrogen (NOx); with a 

further 35% from regulated industrial sources.28 

4.3 45% of the fine particles (PM10) found in Sheffield’s air come from 

regulated industrial sources, with a further 40% from road traffic.  (see 

Figure 6) 

4.4 Heavy diesel vehicles create 70% of the nitrogen dioxide (NO2) emitted 

from transport and 48% of fine particles (PM10). 

Figure 6  

50%

35%

15%

Road Traffic

Industrial Point Sources

Area Sources (domestic & commercial)

Sources of NOx

emissions in Sheffield

Source: Airviro Computer Model & 
Emissions Data Bases DA20,05 ref20,12b

40%

45%

15%

Road Traffic

Industrial Point Sources

Area Sources (domestic & commercial)

Sources of PM10

emissions in Sheffield

Source: Emissions Data Base (EDB) using 
EDB DA20,05

 

4.5 Sheffield’s main polluting industrial process emissions are already tightly 

regulated. For example, from iron and steel producing industries or metal 

surface treatment processes. As a result, most of the measures in this 

plan concentrate on tackling pollution from road transport, because this 

source remains under-regulated meaning the City Council and its 

partners must take action to ensure that vehicle emissions are reduced29. 

5 What are we already doing? 

5.1 The existing Air Quality Action Plan from 2003 is currently the main plan 

for reducing air pollution in Sheffield. The 2003 plan took a very broad 

view and incorporated multiple actions and measures across a wide 

range of areas. Whilst this reduced nitrogen dioxide (NO2) emissions, 

                                            
28

 See Appendix 1 - Source apportionment for pollutants for further details (page 42) 
29

 Environment Act 1995 

18 

Page 68



levels did not decline sufficiently to achieve national standards and EU 

Limit Values. 

5.2 Following ongoing monitoring, an Air Quality Management Area (Figure 

7, page 19) was declared across the whole of the urban area of the city 

for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) in March 2010, 

following a report to Cabinet30.  

Figure 7  

 

5.3 The declaration of this area was based on the evidence reported in the 

formal Detailed Assessment (2008) and Updating and Screening 

Assessment (2009) reports respectively, to DEFRA, showing areas of 

Sheffield where nitrogen dioxide (NO2) or fine particles (PM10) amounts 

are likely to breach national and EU legislation. 

5.4 This means the Council is required to produce an Air Quality Action Plan 

to cover the period up to 2015, with the aim of reducing levels of nitrogen 

dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10)31
 to below EU thresholds. 

5.5 The production of the plan has been led by the City Council and informed 

by a multidisciplinary group (the Air Quality Action Plan Working Group); 

including representatives from the local community, the Highways 

Agency, Environment Agency, health colleagues and South Yorkshire 

Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE). 

                                            
30

 Air Quality Management in Sheffield, Sheffield City Council Cabinet Report 13 January 2010 
31

 Annual limit of 40µg.m
-3

 for NO2 and the daily limit of 50µg.m
-3 

for PM10 (which is not to be 

exceeded more than 35 times a year) do not continue to be breached 

19 

Page 69



6 How will this plan improve air quality? 

6.1 As stated, Sheffield’s main polluting industrial processes are already 

tightly-regulated.  As such this plan concentrates on tackling pollution 

from road transport which remains under-regulated meaning the City 

Council and its partners must act to ensure emissions are reduced32. 

Summary 

6.2 We ranked the actions proposed in our consultation using the responses 

received, including the additional actions suggested and our assessment 

of the impact33 on improving air quality based on Table 2 to develop the 

commitments made in this plan, shown in Figure 8. 

Table 2 

Category Impact

Low No measurable effect on air quality 

Medium Measurable air quality effects but insufficient to achieve objectives. 

High 
If used in a package of measures, EU and DEFRA objectives for  

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) could be achieved 

6.3 The order of the actions below reflects the likely impact on improving air 

quality. If fully implemented the most effective actions together could 

achieve the EU and DEFRA objectives for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and 

fine particles (PM10).  

6.4 Some of these actions are already happening, which we will continue to 

improve.  Others are in the early planning stages and we (like other 

major cities) need to decide whether they would have the desired impact 

in Sheffield. 

Figure 8 Our commitments 

                                            
32

 Environment Act 1995  
33

 As assessed by professional judgement of the Air Quality Action Plan Working Group 

20 

Page 70



Action 1: Assess feasibility for a Low Emission Zone 

Action 2: Develop infrastructure for refuelling low emission vehicles 

Action 3: Promote smarter travel choices 

Action 4: Improve engine performance of commercial diesel vehicles 

Action 5: Mitigate the impact of the M1 motorway (particularly in the 

Tinsley Area) 

Action 6: Develop policies to support better air quality 

 
Action 7: Control industrial emissions 

6.5 The proposed actions were also assessed in terms of their estimated 

costs, and timescales.  The categories used are shown in Table 3 and 

Table 4 below: 

Table 3 Estimated financial costs of Action Plan Actions 

Costing category Estimated costs of actions 

Low < £100,000 

Medium £100,000 – £1m 

High >£1m 

 

Table 4 Estimated timescales 

Time Category Time required to implement and impact on air quality 

Long > 5 years 

Medium 2-5 years 

Short < 1 year 

Commitments in detail 

Action 1 - Assess feasibility for a Low Emission Zone 

6.6 We are undertaking a detailed feasibility and modelling study to 

demonstrate the costs and potential air quality improvements of 

introducing a Low Emission Zone. This is a geographically defined area, 

subject to enforcement powers, where operators of vehicles must comply 

with a specified low emissions policy.  

6.7 The zone would encourage operators, particularly of lorries (HGVs) and 

buses to move to alternative fuel sources and improved engine 

21 

Page 71



performance vehicles. The hybrid Stagecoach Buses34 are one example 

of such a change. We are also working with the bus companies to 

formulate a voluntary strategy to reduce vehicle idling and to progress 

the commitment for 100% low floor buses which will get higher Euro Star 

engines in place. 

6.8 The feasibility study will set out how the scheme could operate and the 

potential costs to both the City Council and affected businesses and 

transport operators. Enforcement will require an agreement with bus 

operators about vehicle emissions and replacement, and implementing 

an emissions policy for Taxi Licensing (these are covered in Action 4: 

Improving the performance of commercial diesel vehicles).  

6.9 Appendix 3 - Low Emissions Zone Feasibility Study (page 46) sets out 

some of the issues that are being considered in the feasibility study. 

 

Action 1 Assess feasibility for a Low Emission Zone 

Air Quality 

Impact

The introduction of a Zone would potentially reduce emissions and it 

will therefore, have a beneficial effect on health. The impact is 

expected to be medium / high. 

Cost / Benefit The cost of undertaking the feasibility study would be medium to 

the City Council. The cost of introducing this scheme is expected to 

be high to both the City Council, businesses and transport 

operators.  The benefits to air quality are expected to be high to 

members of the public within the Zone. There would also potentially 

be a positive impact outside the Zone (medium / high) as many 

vehicles will travel across Sheffield District as a whole and not just 

through the controlled area.  So where their emission performance 

improves, this in turn would help to improve air quality in other 

areas that they pass through. 

Timescale The feasibility study should be completed within 12 months.

Funding Funding for the feasibility study is being provided through the 

DEFRA Air Quality Grant and South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 

3. If the Zone is progressed to implementation, then the scheme 

would be likely to be funded through Grants, from private sector 

investment, from revenue generation and may also be supported 

with capital funding from South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 3. 

Ownership Sheffield City Council; South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 

Executive 

Partners Sheffield City Council; South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 

Executive, Eco stars programme

                                            
34

 See Appendix 3 - Low Emissions Zone Feasibility Study page 46 

22 

Page 72



Action 2: Develop infrastructure for refuelling low emission vehicles 

6.10 We will enable commercial operators and the wider public to switch to 

cleaner fuel such as electric or gas35, through the development of a gas 

refuelling site and electric vehicle recharging sites across South 

Yorkshire. The development of this infrastructure is subject to successful 

funding bids36.  

6.11 Any low emission vehicles working in Sheffield will be able to refuel at 

these sites and could also operate within a Low Emission Zone, if 

implemented.   

6.12 We will work with partners to develop other energy alternatives for the 

city, such as hydrogen. We will also promote and encourage the uptake 

of low emission vehicles through a positive marketing and promotion 

programme 

Implementation Plan:

  Develop a low emission vehicle refuelling infrastructure to include 

electric charging points and gas filling stations 

  Develop and source alternative fuel supply within the City 

  Promote and encourage the uptake of low emission vehicles through a 

positive marketing and promotion programme 

6.13 Several strands of work are already being progressed within Sheffield 

and South Yorkshire including: 

  Development of a Compressed Natural Gas Refuelling Station project 

– business case to be developed, funded through the South Yorkshire 

Local Transport Plan 3, by April 2014. 

  Bio-methane production37 - facilitating the development of an 

Anaerobic Digestion plant in the City by 2014. 

  Plugged in (South) Yorkshire, demonstration project being led by CO2 

Sense to catalyse the uptake of electric vehicles supporting Small 

Medium Enterprises with reduced price electric vehicle trials and 

installation of charging points - funding bids submitted through Local 

Sustainable Transport Fund main bid and European Regional 

Development Fund. Initial funding in 2011/12 through South Yorkshire 

Local Transport Plan 3. 

6.14 Appendix 4 - Upgrading vehicles to low emissions fuels (page 48) 

provides further details of some of the costs and considerations. 

                                            
35

 (bio-methane or compressed natural gas) 
36

 Bids have been submitted to the South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan, Local Sustainable 

Transport Fund and European Regional Development Fund 
37

 Science for Environment Policy Report,  

23 

Page 73



Action 2 Develop infrastructure for refuelling low emission vehicles 

Air Quality 

Impact

Initially the impact will be smaller as fleets switch from diesel. 

However, as the infrastructure develops its impact will increase 

leading to significant reductions in nitrogen dioxide (NO2), fine 

particles (PM10) and carbon.  This in turn will result in a beneficial 

effect on health. 

Cost / Benefit The cost of establishing this scheme will be high and the benefits to 

air quality would be medium. Where take-up is achieved in large 

volumes of vehicles within fleets a significant improvement in 

emissions and air quality would be expected. 

Timescale Feasibility study should be complete in 2 years (short-medium). 

Funding Development of this measure is ongoing via South Yorkshire Local 

Transport Plan 3 funding for the gas refuelling station, and through 

a bid to the Local Sustainable Transport Fund and European 

Regional Development Funding for electric refuelling stations to de-

risk investment from the private sector. 

Site preparation for the refuelling station will de-risk private sector 

involvement so that a commercial organisation could then fund, 

procure, install and operate the infrastructure, thereby providing a 

business opportunity and job creation, with their costs being 

recovered through a margin on the gas pumped to the users. 

Ownership Sheffield City Council; South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 

Executive; ITA (Freight Group)   

Partners Sheffield City Council; Public transport operators; South Yorkshire 

Passenger Transport Executive

Action 3: Promote smarter travel choices 

6.15 We will encourage changes to the way people travel by improving public 

transport and marketing services such as travel awareness campaigns, 

setting up websites for car share schemes, supporting car clubs and 

encouraging teleworking. We will also establish a Bus Partnership 

Agreement as part of our efforts to help improve smarter travel choices 

(modal shift). This will remove some of the buses on the network, reduce 

congestion and air pollution. We will develop specific schemes to get 

employees to and from work and children to and from school, such as 

‘Bike It’ which promotes cycling through schools. We will also be 

investing in public transport, such as the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 

Northern Route38, and support the implementation of the Government-led 

2 year Tram-Train pilot scheme39 to promote innovation in sustainable 

travel, improve reliability and increase modal shift from cars to tram. 

6.16 One of the first principles of reducing the need to travel by car would be 

to ensure that as many destinations as possible are accessible to public 

                                            
38

 http://www.sy-busrapidtransit.co.uk/default.asp?pageid=3&groupid=3 
39

 http;//www.bbc.co.uk/news/uk-england-south-yorkshire-18100674 

24 

Page 74



transport, walking and cycling. This includes developing Park and Ride 

schemes, journey planning tools, cycle paths, cycle storage and better 

footpaths, subject to a successful funding bid40. The Council is 

developing a Cycle to Work scheme for its employees, to build on the 

other benefits aimed at promoting cycling that already exist41. 

6.17 Investment and commitment will be needed in order to achieve significant 

mode shift, and resulting improvements in air quality.  For example, 

Darlington, Peterborough and Worcester participated in a DfT funded 

Sustainable Travel Demonstration project, costing £10 million over 5 

years (2004-2008).  

6.18 Car use was cut by 9%, equivalent to 53 million miles of car travel and 

saving 17,000 tonnes of carbon dioxide. Levels of walking increased by 

more than 10% in each location, while bus use grew by more than a third 

in Peterborough and by a fifth in Worcester.  

6.19 There was also a 12% increase in cycling in Peterborough and a 19 per 

cent increase in Worcester. Darlington, which received further 

Government funding to improve facilities for cyclists, saw levels of cycling 

more than double over the same period.42 

 

 

Action 3 Promote smarter travel choices 

Air Quality 

Impact

Emissions from transport form the single biggest contributor to air 

pollution. Increasing use of public transport and active travel, such 

as walking and cycling, should reduce single occupancy car use, 

improve air quality and result in a beneficial effect on health.  

How people choose to travel is measured through annual traffic 

cordon surveys and trends in modal shift are analysed yearly – 

please see Appendix 5 - Traffic Flow (page 50) 

The impact of smarter travel choices on air quality will be low 

initially, but should progressively increase over time as further 

investment in measures and actions encourages greater mode shift.

Cost / Benefit The cost of continuing this scheme would be high in total while the 

costs of individual actions within the scheme are low cost to both 

the City Council and businesses. The benefits to air quality would 

be low for individual projects but combined together are potentially 

medium (or high) to air quality overall. 

Timescale Ongoing and will include timescale for increased work through Local 

                                            
40

 Bid made to the Local Sustainable Transport Fund 
41

 Council benefits include a cycle business mileage at 20p per mile, secure cycle parking, and 

the offer of  an interest free loan of £300 to enable bike purchase 
42

 http://www.rudi.net/node/21125 

25 

Page 75



Sustainable Transport Fund. 

Funding Funding will be pursued through Local Sustainable Transport Fund 

main bid. Ongoing additional funding will be sought for 2014 / 15. 

Ownership Sheffield City Council; South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 

Executive; South Yorkshire Travel Behaviour Change Unit 

Partners Employers; Public transport operators; Urban Cycle Coaching 

(Pedal Ready & Sheffield City Council) 

Action 4: Improve engine performance of commercial diesel 

vehicles

6.20 We will encourage cleaner fleets, by enhancing the South Yorkshire ECO 

Stars Fleet Recognition Scheme, subject to a successful funding bid8. 

This is a free, voluntary scheme where operators of commercial diesel 

vehicles43 are assessed and ranked on fuel saving and sustainable 

activities across their transport fleet. ECO Stars rate individual vehicles 

and the whole fleet for their overall transport operation. 

6.21 Currently, thousands of lorries, vans and buses operating across South 

Yorkshire are included in the scheme and are making fuel savings which 

result in reduced emissions. The Council fleet (currently 680 vehicles) 

has a 3-Stars ECO Star rating, which we are seeking to improve over 

2012/13.  

6.22 We are also assessing the introduction of an emissions policy for the 

vehicles we license, either as private hire or hackney carriages (taxis). 

This aims to facilitate the replacement of all old and more polluting taxis 

with newer and less polluting ones by 2017. 

Action 4 Improve engine performance of commercial diesel vehicles 

Air Quality 

Impact

The impact of these measures on air quality will be medium. 

Transport is the single biggest source of air pollution, especially 

from diesel vehicles. Measures and actions which contribute to fuel 

savings and therefore reduced emissions will have a positive impact 

on air quality and a beneficial effect on health. 

Cost / Benefit The Eco Stars scheme is free to join and can save an operator up 

to £2,300 per vehicle a year. Each business is assessed and 

advised how to improve engine performance, leading to fuel savings 

resulting in reduced emissions and better air quality. Operators bear 

the costs associated with implementing the scheme, but gain 

recognition for best practice in fleet management and accrue fuel 

savings. Consequently, the cost of this scheme is low / medium 

and the air quality benefit medium. 

Any actions to minimise taxi emissions would be subject to a cost-

benefit analysis prior to agreement 

                                            
43

 Commercial diesel vehicles are defined as goods vehicles (lorries), buses and coaches 

26 

Page 76



Timescale The Eco Stars scheme is ongoing, but dependent on the success of 

bids to the Local Sustainable Transport Fund. 

The aim is to implement the Taxi Emissions Policy by 2017. 

Funding A bid to the Local Sustainable Transport Fund has been submitted 

to allow the Eco Stars scheme to continue to roll out across South 

Yorkshire.

Ownership The Air Quality and Climate Group of the SY Local Transport Plan; 

Sheffield City Council; Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council; Taxi 

Operators 

Partners The Air Quality and Climate Group of the SY Local Transport Plan; 

Sheffield City Council; Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council; 

Local Transport businesses; Taxi Operators 

Action 5: Mitigate the impact of the M1 motorway on air quality 

(particularly in the Tinsley Area) 

6.23 Our efforts on mitigating the impact of the M1 are dependent on national 

Government, without their commitment, it is unlikely that we can 

adequately address air quality in Tinsley.  At present, we believe the 

introduction of speed management will improve air quality around the M1 

motorway.  As such, the Council will continue to lobby the Department for 

Transport (DfT) to reduce and enforce a speed limit on the M1 through 

Tinsley, and to work with us to develop alternative actions that would 

improve air quality. 

6.24 The Government have announced their Managed Motorway programme 

will go ahead on the M1 through Sheffield and proposes to reduce 

congestion by using the hard shoulder to increase capacity for the 

motorway. If this also results in an increase in traffic, air pollution will 

almost certain worsen. As such, we want this programme to include a 

reduced speed limit, particularly when air pollution is, or is expected to 

be, elevated. For example, at peak traffic times and in certain weather 

conditions. 

6.25 We will also develop alternative actions that would improve air quality 

around the M1, particularly in the Tinsley area. 

6.26 Tinsley is an urban industrial area in the northeast of Sheffield. The M1 

motorway is a major inter-urban haulage route that connects northern 

cities to those in the south. The M1 passes through the Tinsley area at 

Junction 34 and traffic flow on average at that point is usually in the 

region of over 110,000 vehicles per day, with up to 20% heavy goods 

vehicles, travelling at high speeds. 

6.27 The M1 is a major contributor to the high concentrations of nitrogen 

dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) in the area and speed 

management is a targeted action to help improve air quality. 

27 

Page 77



6.28 The City Council and the Highways Agency are currently undertaking a 

six month assessment of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels around Bawtry 

Road and the M1 Junction 34 South, Tinsley.  The findings will be 

reported in summer 2012, when specific actions will be developed. 

Action 5 Mitigate the impact of the M1 motorway on air quality 

(particularly in the Tinsley area) 

Air Quality 

Impact

The air quality impact of this action will be medium / high. The 

action will largely result in the reduction of transport emissions and 

will therefore; have a beneficial effect on health. 

Cost / Benefit The cost of any speed management measure would be medium; 

but if implemented would be borne by the Highways Agency for 

installing and operating the Gantry and Variable Message Signage. 

The air quality benefits will be medium / high and the 

implementation could lead to the annual average standards for 

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) being achieved in the Tinsley area. There 

will also be health benefits as a consequence. 

Any alternative methods to mitigate the impact of M1 motorway 

would be subject to a cost-benefit analysis prior to agreement. 

Timescale Ongoing, but potentially achievable in 1 - 2 years (short-medium) 

Funding This action would require officer time, plus appropriate funding to 

both implement and enforce speed limit and any other mitigation 

action hence this measure is considered to be medium / high cost. 

Ownership Sheffield City Council; Department for the Environment, Food and 

Rural Affairs; Department for Transport; Highways Agency. 

Partners Sheffield City Council; East End Quality of Life Initiative; 

Department for Transport, Department for the Environment, Food 

and Rural Affairs; Highways Agency. 

Action 6: Develop policies to support better air quality 

6.29 We will introduce and enforce a planning policy to ensure developments 

sensitive to air pollution are located in areas where national air quality 

objectives are achieved, unless they provide overriding regeneration 

benefits, and sufficient measures to protect air quality are incorporated. 

For significant developments, notable resulting loss of air quality will 

need to be appropriately mitigated. 

6.30 The City Council is currently undertaking a review of the way in which air 

quality is assessed as part of the Planning Application process. We will 

expect all new developments to implement or support actions that make 

a positive contribution to improving air quality, such as by reducing the 

demand for fuel consumption. We are also working to develop an 

anaerobic digestion plant (to complement Action 2) that will enable gas 

powered vehicles to be used for deliveries that we could condition in 

planning applications. 

28 

Page 78



6.31 We will also produce updated guidance on Sustainable Transport in 

2012/13. This will improve the current travel planning process, help to 

expand car club options and parking schemes for low emission vehicles, 

to promote smarter travel choices. 

6.32 We will integrate policies for spatial and transport planning. This will 

ensure accessible local facilities are close to high-density residential 

developments, to reduce travel demand and open up possibilities for 

walking and cycling. Spatial planning policy can also limit the amount of 

parking capacity available at new or altered developments. 

6.33 The City Council will also develop a package of measures to encourage 

low emission car use as appropriate, linked to the implementation of 

Action 2 and Action 6. 

6.34 The Council will continue to develop and review its parking policies in 

order to promote acceptable levels of air quality.  For example, it 

currently has a ‘Green Parking Scheme’ in the city centre, designed to 

encourage the uptake of alternatively fuelled vehicles by providing low-

cost parking.  The Scheme is currently being reviewed to ensure that it 

continues to contribute to the objectives of the Air Quality Action Plan. In 

addition, The Council has reduced long stay parking in the city centre in 

favour of short stay provision. This will help to reduce commuter parking 

and congestion during the busiest periods. 

Action 6 Develop policies to support better air quality 

Air Quality 

Impact

The air quality impact of this action will be low / medium and is 

dependent upon the amount of new development coming forward. 

The action will largely result in the reduction of transport emissions 

and will therefore; have a beneficial effect on health. There would 

potentially be a positive impact across Sheffield especially where 

there are new developments.   

Where implementation of this measure results in emissions 

reduction from transport associated with new developments, this 

could help other areas they pass through including those 

neighbourhoods which have elevated air pollution. 

Cost / Benefit The cost of this measure will be low / medium, as this could 

include the potential cost of defending a planning application 

decision.  The air quality benefits will be low / medium and the 

implementation could lead to the annual average standards for 

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) being achieved in many areas of Sheffield. 

There will also be health benefits as a consequence. 

Timescale Ongoing 

Funding This action would mainly require officer time and it is not likely to be 

significant in terms of direct cost, unless there is a need to defend a 

planning application decision.  There would also be a cost to the 

developer as a result of implementation. 

29 

Page 79



Ownership Sheffield City Council 

Partners Sheffield City Council; Developers; Consultants; the Public 

Action 7: Control industrial emissions 

6.35 We will work closely with the Environment Agency and industries 

controlled by Sheffield City Council to ensure permits are granted and 

enforced to reduce emissions44. Industrial emissions in Sheffield are an 

important source of air pollution, particularly fine particles (PM10), 

contributing up to 45% of the City's total. Efforts to further control 

emissions by upgrading processes are ongoing at regulated sites, with 

improvements required as new pollution reduction technology is 

available. 

Action 7 Control industrial emissions 

Air Quality 

Impact

The cost of this measure will be low and the air quality benefits 

medium. Continued control of industrial emissions should 

progressively reduce fine particle (PM10) emissions from industry, 

with nitrogen dioxide (NO2) being maintained. 

Cost / Benefit The air quality impact of this action will be medium. The action will 

largely result in the reduction of industrial pollutant emissions and 

will therefore; have a beneficial effect on health. There would 

potentially be a positive impact across Sheffield and especially in 

areas where residential properties are in close proximity to industry. 

Timescale Ongoing 

Funding This action would mainly require officer time and it is not likely to be 

significant in terms of cost. The cost of regulation is borne by the 

regulating authorities – Sheffield City Council, Environmental 

Protection Service and the Environment Agency. 

Ownership Sheffield City Council; Environment Agency 

Partners Sheffield City Council; Environment Agency 

7 How we will assess progress 

7.1 Overall we will measure success by decreasing levels of nitrogen dioxide 

(NO2) and fine particles (PM10) at key sites in the city, improving people’s 

health by achieving air quality standards in the city by 2015. 

7.2 We will need to carefully monitor progress on this plan and regularly 

assess our achievements in order to determine whether further and 

stronger local action or national policy measures and interventions are 

necessary. 

                                            
44

 Some of these emissions are regulated by the Environment Agency and Sheffield City 
Council under the Integrated Pollution and Control Directive which is implemented via the 
Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) Regulations. 

30 

Page 80



7.3 We will do this by integrating this into the Council’s performance 

management framework, by incorporating these targets into the 2012/13 

Business Plan for Development Services. 

7.4 We will follow Government guidance, as detailed in Local Air Quality 

Management Policy Guidance45, and report to the Secretary of State 

(DEFRA) on our progress, any improvements in air quality made and the 

challenges experienced. We will also produce an Annual Progress / 

Monitoring Report each year.  

7.5 Once the Low Emission Zone initial feasibility study has been completed 

in autumn 2012, the Council will update and strengthen this plan, 

following consultation on any proposed amendments. 

7.6 As such this plan for 2015, published in June 2012 is the first report in a 

three year rolling programme. The Air Quality Action Plan for 2015 will be 

reviewed and updated in June 2013 and June 2014. 

Governance

7.7 An Air Quality Action Plan Steering Group46 was formed to oversee the 

development of this plan and lead on the implementation. The Steering 

Group was supported by a multidisciplinary group, the Air Quality Action 

Plan Working Group, who produced the plan for 2015.  

7.8 The Working Group comprised of representatives from the local 

community, the Highways Agency, Environment Agency, health 

colleagues, South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE), 

and Sheffield City Council officers.  

7.9 The Working Group reviewed the sources of air pollution in the city 

(described in detail in Appendix 1 - Source apportionment for pollutants, 

page 42) and considered what actions should be included in the plan for 

2015.  

7.10 These actions were reviewed following the public consultation and 

aligned to current city and regional plans including; the Sheffield 

Transport Vision and the Sheffield City Region Transport Strategy, 2011 - 

2026. The latter identifies the role of transport in supporting economic 

growth whilst reducing emissions, enhancing social inclusion and 

maximising safety. It also identifies a set of policies which are specifically 

focussed upon tackling emissions and which will support the 

implementation of the Air Quality Action Plan for 2015. 

7.11 The Council’s overall Air Quality Champion will be the Director of Public 

Health as part of their role on the city’s Health and Well Being Board. The 

                                            
45

 LAGM.PG(O9): Part IV of the Environment Act 1995: LOCAL AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT 
Policy Guidance (PG09), February 2009 
46

 Part IV of the Environment Act 1995, Local Air Quality Management Policy Guidance (PG09), 
p21. 

31 

Page 81



Executive Director of the Place Portfolio will have responsibility for 

delivery of this plan. 

7.12 In addition, each action in the plan has a lead officer on both the Steering 

Group and Working Groups for air quality supported by a member of the 

local community (see Appendix 2 – Air Quality Champions, page 45).  

8 Our duties within the legal framework 

8.1 Under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995, Local Authorities are 

required to review and assess air quality in their areas and to report 

against objectives for specified pollutants of concern, to the Department 

for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA).  

8.2 Prompted by an earlier assessment of local air quality in Sheffield, an Air 

Quality Management Area was declared in 2003 for the whole urban 

area. An action plan was developed in response to the elevated levels of 

air pollution in the city. Whilst this reduced nitrogen dioxide (NO2) 

emissions, levels did not decline sufficiently to achieve national 

standards and EU limit values. 

8.3 Action to manage and improve air quality is largely driven by European 

Union (EU) legislation. The 2008 ambient air quality directive 

(2008/50/EC) sets legally binding limits for concentrations in outdoor air 

of major air pollutants that impact public health including particulate 

matter (PM10 and PM2.5) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2).  

8.4 As part of this process, Sheffield City Council declared an Air Quality 

Management Area across the whole of the urban area of the city for both 

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) in March 2010. The 

declaration was based on the evidence reported in the formal Detailed 

Assessment (2008) and Updating and Screening Assessment (2009) 

reports respectively, to DEFRA, showing areas of Sheffield where 

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) or fine particles (PM10) amounts are likely to 

breach national and EU legislation. 

8.5 This means that the Council is required to produce an Air Quality Action 

Plan to cover the period up to 2015, with the aim of improving nitrogen 

dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) levels, specifically that the annual 

limit of 40µg.m3 for NO2 and the daily limit of 50µg.m3 for PM10 (which is 

not to be exceeded more than 35 times a year) do not continue to be 

breached. 

Achieving compliance with UK Objectives and EU Limit Values 

8.6 Nationally and locally air quality is a major issue47. The UK is likely to 

continue to breach EU air quality directives48. For example, European 

                                            
47

 Environmental Audit Committee - Fifth Report Air Quality 

http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200910/cmselect/cmenvaud/229/22902.htm  
48

 http://ec.europa.eu/environment/air/quality/legislation/existing_leg.htm 

32 

Page 82



law required that the nitrogen dioxide (NO2) air quality objective of 

40µg.m-3 be achieved by 2010. In September 2011 the commissioner of 

the European Union started to look at the nitrogen dioxide levels as 

reported by the UK government in order to consider the UK’s proposed 

remedies as laid out in its action plan and decide upon the level of fines 

to be imposed for non compliance. This decision has not yet been made. 

8.7 Not achieving the air quality targets nationally means not complying with 

EU law and consequently, this is a risk for the Council. There is the 

potential for the UK government to be fined if EU limit values are 

exceeded. The government however, can only pass the fines on if they 

can show that we have not taken appropriate steps to comply with EU 

law. The UK is likely to continue to breach EU air quality directives. 

Potentially the fines which can be imposed are significant. 

8.8 The reserve powers in the Localism Act to passport EU fines to local 

authorities and public bodies (where they have failed to take action when 

they could) is significant and helps to highlight the need for a clear line of 

sight between EU obligations and Local Authority responsibilities to 

improve air quality and provide clarity on the role local authorities play. 

8.9 DEFRA has recently announced the results of the Environment Theme of 

the Governments “Red Tape Challenge” 49.  The implications of this 

report on Local Air Quality Management Review in the future will be to 

reduce the burden on Local Authorities, whilst at the same time 

improving focus on delivery of local measures.  Over the next year 

DEFRA has committed to review the impact of existing legislation, 

including the Clean Air Act, and then consult on the findings13.    

9 How we will tackle the wider causes 

9.1 Air pollution from emissions associated with domestic and commercial 

space and water heating are already being tackled in a number of ways: 

  The city’s energy from waste recovery plant now provides 39 

megawatts of heat via 43 km of pipe to over 140 buildings in the city 

centre saving 13,000 tonnes of carbon per year. Connecting buildings 

to the network reduces the reliance on fossil fuels and improves local 

air quality by reducing nitrogen oxide emissions. The plant itself emits 

less than a quarter of its particulate emission limits and around 60% of 

its NOx limits.   

  Biomass – The aim is to minimise emissions from biomass. Energy 

generation from biomass as a renewable source will be enabled and 

encouraged, where it has a neutral impact on air quality 

o Work is currently underway to extend the district heating network 

through the inclusion of heat and power generated by E.ON UK’s 

biomass plant in the lower don valley (currently under construction) 

                                            
49

DEFRA: Red Tape Challenge – Environment Theme Proposals, March 2010 

33 

Page 83



o A feasibility study for the conversion of existing community heating 

schemes in council housing to state of the art biomass plant  is 

being drafted  

o Work on developing several community heating schemes to 

biomass combined heat and power is being developed with private 

sector  

  A citywide Free Insulation Scheme has helped cut emissions from 

35,000 households by providing free cavity wall and loft insulation, so 

reducing fuel use and assisting the reduction of fuel poverty. It is 

estimated that these measures have cut carbon by around 16,500 

tonnes per year. 

9.2 A proportion of Sheffield's industry that we know contributes to the air 

pollution in the city is tightly regulated. For example, iron and steel 

producing industries or metal surface treatment processes.  

9.3 We will promote individual contributions from the residents of Sheffield by 

demonstrating everyone has a role to play in improving air quality. In 

addition to the specific campaigns to support our commitments in this 

plan, we will promote the use of Care4Air (http://www.care4air.org). 

9.4 This site aims to raise awareness of air quality issues and highlight what 

is happening in the region to improve the quality of our air. In particular, 

Care4Air aims to provide individuals, organisations, schools and 

businesses with information that will enable them to 'do their bit' and 

improve air quality. 

10 Background

Air Quality and Health 

10.1 This plan focuses on the need to comply with UK and EU Limit Values for 

air pollution; limits which have been set to protect health. The most up to 

date evidence suggests that in Sheffield there are around 350 to 500 

premature deaths per year, due to elevated air pollution.50,51  

10.2 The impact of air pollutants on health is well documented and includes 

impact on lung function and respiratory disease (see Table 5). Air quality 

that does not meet acceptable levels leads to increases in medication 

usage and hospital admissions.  

Table 5 Health effects associated with exposure to different air 

pollutants 

Pollutant
Effects related to short term 

exposure

Effects related to long term 

exposure

                                            
50

 http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200910/cmselect/cmenvaud/229/22902.htm 
51

 Sheffield City Council 13/1/2010 cabinet report http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-
council/council-meetings/cabinet/agendas-2010/agenda-13th-january-2010 

34 

Page 84



Effects related to short term Effects related to long term 
Pollutant

exposure exposure

Nitrogen Dioxide   In 

ambient air, nitrogen 

dioxide serves as an 

indicator for a 

complex mixture of 

mainly traffic-related 

air pollution 

  Effects on pulmonary function, 

particularly in asthmatics 

  Increase in airway allergic 

inflammatory reactions 

  Increase in hospital 

admissions 

  Increase in mortality 

  Reduction in lung function 

  Increased probability of 

respiratory Symptoms 

Particulate matter 

(PM10) 

  Lung inflammatory reactions 

  Respiratory symptoms 

  Adverse effects on the 

cardiovascular system 

  Increase in medication usage 

  Increase in hospital 

admissions 

  Increase in mortality 

  Increase in lower respiratory 

symptoms 

  Reduction in lung function in 

children 

  Increase in chronic obstructive 

pulmonary disease 

  Reduction in lung function in 

adults 

  Reduction in life expectancy,  

mainly due to cardiopulmonary 

mortality and probably lung 

cancer 

Ozone (NO2 and 

PM10, combine in 

the atmosphere to 

form Ozone) 

  Adverse effects on pulmonary 

function 

  Lung inflammatory reactions 

  Adverse effects on respiratory 

symptoms 

  Increase in medication usage 

  Increase in hospital 

admissions 

  Increase in mortality 

  Reduction in lung function 

development 

Adapted from World Health Organisation (2004) 52 

 

10.3 Children (and unborn foetuses) are especially vulnerable to the effects of 

air pollution. This is because their lungs, metabolic and immune systems 

are still developing53. The effects in childhood and foetal development 

include: 

  Aggravation of asthma 

  Increased cough and bronchitis 

                                            
52 Health Aspects of Air Pollution results from the WHO project ‘systematic review of health 

aspects of air pollution in Europe page 7 (with thanks to Barbara Rimmington, East End Quality 
of Life Initiative for the link)  http://www.euro.who.int/document/E83080.pdf  
53

 Air Pollution and Noise their effects on human health and social inclusion a review of recent 
literature. Report prepared by Barbara Rimmington, Research Officer, East End Quality of Life 
Initiative, Revised January 2006. 

35 

Page 85



  Low birth weight 

  Infant deaths (due to respiratory and Sudden Infant Death Syndrome) 

  Pre-term births 

  Birth defects leading to effects throughout adult life of: 

o Premature ageing 

o Higher risk of infection 

o Susceptibility to tobacco smoke 

o Susceptibility to occupational exposure41. 

10.4 The adverse effects of elevated air pollution are such that it has a bigger 

impact on life expectancy than road traffic accidents or passive smoking 

(Table 6).  

Table 6 Benefit comparison based on reducing PM2.5 µg/m3 by 

10 µg/m354, the elimination of motor vehicle traffic 

accidents and the elimination of exposure to passive 

smoking

Reduction in 

PM2.5

Elimination of road 

traffic accidents 

Elimination of 

passive smoking

Expected gain in life expectancy 7-8 months 1-3 months 2-3 months 

Est. equivalent gain in life years in 

England and Wales population 2005–2010 

(including people born during that time) 

39,058,000 8,126,000 13,194,000 

Source: Department of Health, EV 142 Taken from House of Commons Environmental Audit 

committee (2010) 

 

10.5 The most conservative estimates of the cost to the NHS are that ill health 

related to elevated air pollution costs nationally up to £20 billion a year55. 

The impact on health is unequal with more effects on the young, the old 

and those with pre existing heart and lung disease. For individuals who 

are particularly sensitive and are exposed to the most elevated levels of 

air pollution the reduction in life expectancy is estimated to be as high as 

9 years56.  

10.6 The number of hospital admissions rises with the increased 

concentrations of fine particles (PM10). Admissions for patients over 65 

with chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) or asthma rise 1% 

per extra 10 g/m3 PM10, and admission for people with cardiovascular 

disease go up 0.5% with the same concentration increase57.  

10.7 Maheswaran and colleagues from the University of Sheffield found 6% of 

coronary heart disease deaths and 11% of stroke deaths in Sheffield 

                                            
54

 (equivalent to eliminating manmade PM2.5 in 2005) 
55

  DEFRA low emissions paper  2010 
56

  http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200910/cmselect/cmenvaud/229/22902.htm 
57

  Brunekreef and Holgate (2002) Air pollution and health. The Lancet Vol 360 p 1233-1242 

36 

Page 86



58,59. This work, based on figures from 

1994-1998, for people aged 45 modelled air pollution data for a number 

of pollutants including fine particles (PM10) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2) 

and took into account age, sex, socioeconomic deprivation and smoking 

prevalence.    

10.8 National committees have also shown that exposure to air pollutants in 

both the short and long term impacts on development of cardiovascular 

disease and leads to an increase in hospital admissions and an increase 

in the risk of death60. 

10.9 A recent study based on the greater London Population of 7.6 million 

found that reducing fine particles (PM2.5) by 1 g/m3 would gain 400,000 

years of life for the current population of London61. Extrapolated to 

Sheffield this would mean a saving of 28,000 years of life for the current 

population of Sheffield62 

10.10 The number of Hospital admissions rises with the increased 

concentrations of fine particles (PM10). Admissions for patients over 65 

with COPD or asthma increase 1% per extra 10 g/m3 PM10 and 

admission for people with cardiovascular disease go up 0.5% with the 

same concentration increase63.  The target, which is being exceeded for 

Sheffield for fine particles (PM10), is an annual average mean of 40 g/m3 

plus a daily mean not to exceed 50 g/m3 more than 35 times a year. 

10.11 In Sheffield there were 647 emergency admissions for asthma (average 

1.8% rate64) in 2008/2009, which while lower than the Yorkshire or 

national average represents only part of the admissions that potentially 

are affected by elevated air pollution. 

Inequality and Air Pollution Related Ill Health

10.12 Air quality is closely linked to traffic pollution so that communities living 

close to main arterial routes will be most affected by elevated air 

pollution.  Although air quality is an issue affecting the whole of the 

Sheffield urban area, the busiest and polluted main routes, especially 

                                            
58

  Maheswaran R, Haining RP, Brindley P, Law J, Pearson T, Fryers PR, Wise S, &Campbell 
MJ (2005a) Outdoor air pollution, mortality, and hospital admissions from coronary heart 
disease in Sheffield, UK: a small-area level ecological study, in European Hearth Journal 2543-
2549 
59

 Maheswaran R, Haining RP, Brindley P, Law J, Pearson T, Fryers PR, Wise S, & Campbell 
MJ (2005b) Outdoor air pollution and stroke in Sheffield, United Kingdom: a small-area level 
geographical study, in Stroke 36:239-243 
60

 Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollution (2006)  Cardiovasular Disease and Air 
Pollution  London: Department of Health 
61

 Miller B G (2010) Report on estimation of mortality impacts of particulate air pollution in 
London.  Edinburgh IOM 
62

 Based on a current Sheffield population of 547,000 and the effects of a reduction being the 
same in Sheffield as in London. 
63

 Brunekreef and Holgate (2002) Air pollution and health. The Lancet Vol 360 p 1233-1242 
64

 Per 100 patients on disease register. Taken from www.nhscomparitors.nhs.uk Date 
accessed: 2 Aug 2010 

37 

Page 87



those leading into the city centre and the M1, are in valleys. These built 

up valleys are close to some of the most disadvantaged areas in the City.  

10.13 In Sheffield, adult asthma admissions are moderately correlated with 

deprivation at GP practice level. Tinsley, the area of Sheffield most 

exposed to air pollution from the M1, has a particularly high level of 

hospital admissions for COPD and asthma. 65,66 

10.14 Deprivation plus current unacceptable air quality, results in further 

susceptibility to unacceptable air quality.  This greater susceptibility is 

due to: 

  increased exposure to other pollutants and allergens (including 

tobacco smoke) 

  existing chronic disease 

  unhealthy behaviours (such as poor diet and alcohol consumption) 

  chronic stress (raised inflammatory disease markers) 

10.15 The public health white paper “Healthy Lives Healthy People67” proposes 

that local authorities should play a stronger role in the delivery of public 

health at local level, including setting objectives and priorities locally. 

10.16 Further, the recently published “Public Health Outcomes Framework68” 

includes an objective 'the population's health is protected from major 

incidents and other threats while reducing health inequalities' for which 

an indicator is air pollution. This framework sets the objectives by which 

the delivery of public health by local authorities will be measured against. 

The Scale of the Problem in Sheffield 

10.17 According to the Department for Transport’s monitoring data there has 

been a 15% increase in total vehicle kilometres travelled in Sheffield 

District between 1993 and 2010.  Nationally, there has been an 18% 

increase over the same period, with South Yorkshire experiencing much 

higher growth than England as a whole. Traffic trends are shown in 

Appendix 5 - Traffic Flow (page 50)  

10.18 In contrast, it can be seen from the City Council’s monitoring data that in 

2011 overall traffic levels in the City Centre were very similar to those 

recorded in 1993.   

                                            
65

 Adult and Childhood Asthma Health Needs Assessment October 2008 Sue Thackray and 
Andrew Booth Public health Department NHS Sheffield.  
66

 From presentation by Sue Thackray ‘COPD care: opportunities’ at the Quality Improvement 
Academy 30 April 2010 
67

 Healthy Lives Healthy People Update and Way Forward July 2011 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance/
DH_128120  
68

 Public Health Outcomes Framework 
"http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidance
/DH_132358" 

38 

Page 88



10.19 However, there are now fewer heavy diesel vehicles, such as lorries 

(Medium Goods Vehicles / Heavy Goods Vehicles) and buses, but more 

cars, taxis and light vans (Light Goods Vehicles) entering and leaving the 

City Centre.   

10.20 Nonetheless, the City Centre still does not currently meet national air 

quality standards and (like the wider urban area of Sheffield District) is 

not expected to comply with EU limits without implementing the 

interventions recommended in this plan.   

10.21 There was a general expectation across the country that cleaner engine 

technologies would lead to some improvement in air quality, however this 

has not been observed either in Sheffield or nationally.  

10.22 The precise reason for this disparity is not fully understood, and is 

currently under investigation, but it is thought to be related to the actual 

on-road performance of diesel road vehicles when compared with test 

bed calculations based on the Euro standards. Preliminary studies 

suggest that69 emissions from diesel vehicles have not improved for 

engines up to and including Euro 5 standard.  

10.23 A further factor is the increase in diesel cars and vans on our roads. The 

growth nationally70 in the amount of diesels as a percentage of the UK 

total number of vehicles has led to a drop off in the improving air quality 

trend, and in many cases a worsening of recorded pollution levels. 

Controlling the Sources of Air Pollution 

10.24 A computer prediction method was used to determine proportions of 

nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and fine particles (PM10) being emitted from 

sources in the city. (See Appendix 1 - Source apportionment for 

pollutants, page 42for the full results).  

10.25 As stated the results of the computer modelling showed that both road 

transport and industrial processes are the most significant emitters of 

both fine particles (PM10) and nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in Sheffield.  

10.26 Air pollution from emissions associated with domestic and commercial 

space and water heating are already being tackled using a number of 

regulatory powers. 

10.27 Industry is largely regulated using IPPC (Integrated Pollution Prevention 

and Control) legislation, with significant improvements being made in 

recent years. Efforts to further control emissions by upgrading processes 

are ongoing, with continued improvements being required as new 

pollution reduction technology is available.  

                                            
69

 Review and Assessment Helpdesk September 2010. 
www.defra.gov.uk/environment/quality/air/airquality/local/support  
70

 http://www.guardian.co.uk/business/2010/aug/05/diesel-car-sales-overtake-petrol” 

39 

Page 89



10.28 There is, however, a large proportion of industrial processes that emit 

nitrogen oxides (NOx) and fine particles (PM10) that are not required to 

be regulated, either because they fall below a certain threshold or aren't 

covered by the regulations. This includes processes such as heat 

treatment, oil quenching sites, commercial incinerators and boilers which 

therefore have no environmental controls imposed upon them. The 

aggregated pollution from these unregulated processes is also 

contributing to the air pollution problem but there aren’t currently powers 

to deal with them, as the City Council cannot impose standards upon 

these installations. 

10.29 Switching to alternative fuels (rather than diesel) such as gas or electric 

could also have significant benefits. The introduction of significant 

proportions of low emission vehicles could have a very significant effect 

on air quality. Gas powered vehicles, for example, emit about half the 

amount of nitrogen oxides (NOx) as petrol and diesel vehicles and emit 

virtually no particulate matter71. 

Air Quality Action Plan 2003 

10.30 The existing Air Quality Action Plan from 2003 is currently the main plan 

for air pollution mitigation in Sheffield. The 2003 plan took a very broad 

view and incorporated multiple actions72 across a wide range of areas. 

Whilst this reduced nitrogen dioxide (NO2) emissions, levels did not 

decline sufficiently to achieve national standards and EU Limit Values. 

  Public Transport Actions 

  Road and Rail Network Actions 

  Traffic Control Actions 

  Cleaner Vehicle Actions 

  M1 Specific Actions 

  Industry Actions 

  Eco-Efficiency and Planning 

  Putting Pressure on the Government 

10.31 Many of the actions in the 2003 plan were dependent on national policy 

and therefore outside of what the Council could achieve. In particular, 

there had been an over reliance on national measures such as fleet 

improvements through better engine technologies which have not 

materialised. 

Consultation on the Air Quality Action Plan for 2015 

10.32 Consultation was conducted in spring 2011 by referring the plan to: 

  Community Assemblies 

                                            
71

 Technical Guidance for Biofuels. Biofuel Cities- A European Partnership www.biofuel-cities.eu  
72

 www.sheffield.gov.uk/environment/environmental-health/pollution/air/management/action-plan 

40 

Page 90



  The Sheffield Clean Air Partnership73 

  The general public via the Council website 

  Statutory consultees74, for example, the Secretary of State, 

Environment Agency, Highways Agency, neighbouring Local 

Authorities, National Park Authority, other public authorities as 

appropriate, such as NHS Sheffield 

  Bodies representing local business interests and other organisations, 

for example, the Chamber of Commerce, and business adviser panel. 

Summary of Consultation Results 

10.33 Replies to the consultation process indicated that there was strong 

support for the Action Plan’s aspirations to reduce emissions from traffic, 

encourage public transport use and to actively promote improvements in 

engine technology and the use of less polluting fuels.  

10.34 Air pollution was seen as a big problem in the City, with a high level of 

awareness of the serious health implications of air pollution. 

Respondents identified and ranked the following activities in order of 

preference: 

a. Smarter Choices, to influence travel behaviour 

b. City Centre Low Emission Zone 

c. Sustainable Transport Policies 

d. Planning Policies which support improved air quality 

e. Low Emission Vehicles 

f. SCC Procurement Policy (Low Emission Fleet) 

g. Thriving District and Local Centres Strategy 

10.35 Respondents also supported the more ambitious measures in the 

proposed plan but indicated that the Council should develop strategies 

and policies in pursuit of air quality improvements, matched with 

adequate resources.  

10.36 Additional measures prioritised for implementation, ranked by 

respondents, included: 

h. – Anti vehicle idling campaign and enforcement 

i. – Low Emissions Refuelling Infrastructure 

j. – Speed management on the M1 Motorway 

                                            
73

 The Clean Air Partnership was set up to improve air quality in Sheffield and to act as key 
consultees and stakeholders around major air quality decisions. 
74

 Part IV of the Environment Act 1995, Local Air Quality Management Policy Guidance (PG09), 
p23. 

41 

Page 91



11 Appendix 1 - Source apportionment for pollutants 

11.1 Source apportionment is a computer prediction method used to 

determine proportions of pollutants (in this case nitrogen oxides (NOx
75) 

and PM10) being emitted from sources in the city. 

Source Apportionment for Nitrogen Oxides (NOx)

11.2 This exercise was carried out using the Airviro computer model and 

Emission databases76. Vehicle types were also subdivided into eight 

vehicle types rather than just heavy and light vehicles. The results are 

shown in Table 7 below. 

Table 7 Source Apportionment for Nitrogen Dioxide (NO )2

Source
Proportion of NO2

Emissions

Road Traffic 50% 

Industrial Point Sources 35% 

Area Sources (in this case domestic and 
commercial heating) 

15% 

 

Table 8 Breakdown of road traffic emissions (NO )2

Source of road traffic emissions (NO2)
Heavy

Vehicles
Light

Vehicles

Petrol Motorcycle   <1% 

Petrol Car / Taxi  17 % 

Diesel Car / Taxi  6% 

Petrol Light Goods Vehicle  <1% 

Diesel Light Goods Vehicle  5% 

Diesel Bus 19%  

Diesel Artic Heavy Goods Vehicle 26%  

Diesel Rigid Heavy Goods Vehicle 25%  

Total proportion of road traffic emissions 70% 30% 
 

11.3 This demonstrates that 81% of all road traffic emissions for nitrogen 

dioxide (NO2) can be attributed to diesel vehicles, with the remaining 

19% linked to petrol vehicles. 

11.4 The implications for this plan are that targeting heavy vehicles (for 

example in low emission zones or freight schemes) would be likely to 

have a positive effect on nitrogen dioxide (NO2) levels, given the 

                                            
75

 NOx converts to NO2 in air 
76

 DA20,05 ref20,12b 

42 

Page 92



comparatively low levels of traffic in this category and their 

disproportionate impact on air quality. 

Source Apportionment for PM10

11.5 This was done using the iAirviro system using the search function of the 

Emissions Data Base77 for the whole of the Sheffield area. 

11.6 Modelling for PM10 is inherently difficult and the following assumptions 

were made: 

  All air quality models assume that particles act like a gas. 

  Re-suspension of particles is considered. These particles are largely 

from road vehicles which are deposited on roads and then remobilised 

by the action of traffic. Re-suspended dust in this exercise is 

considered to be equal to the primary exhaust emissions78. 

  Secondary particles formed from gases by chemical reactions are not 

considered. 

  Trans-boundary particle pollution is not accounted for. 

  All particle emissions from point sources are assumed to be PM10. 

  Future work will include updating of emission information to make 

more accurate assessments. 

11.7 Nevertheless some broad conclusions can be made. 

Table 9 Source Apportionment for PM10

Source
Percentage of PM10

emissions

Area (domestic and commercial heating) 15% 

Point (industrial stack emissions) 45% 

Exhaust emissions 20% 
Road Traffic 

Re-suspended dust 20% 
 

11.8 It appears that for fine particles (PM10) the largest source of emissions 

within the Sheffield area is industrial processes.  

11.9 As stated a proportion of Sheffield's industry that we know contributes to 

the air pollution in Sheffield, is tightly regulated. For example, iron and 

steel producing industries or metal surface treatment processes. 

Therefore, most of the measures contained in the Air Quality Action Plan 

for 2015 concentrate on tackling pollution from road transport. 

                                            
77

 EDB DA20,05 
78

 Local Air Quality Management, Technical Guidance LAQM.TG(09) Appendix A2.43 

43 

Page 93



44 

Emissions of PM10 from traffic 

11.10 Emissions of PM10 from traffic were further investigated using the South 

Yorkshire Emissions Data Base79 which predicts traffic emissions for 

eight different vehicle types. 

Table 10 Exhaust Emissions of PM10 from traffic 

Source of road traffic emissions (PM10)
Heavy

Vehicles
Light

Vehicles

Petrol Motorcycle   4% 

Petrol Car / Taxi  6% 

Diesel Car / Taxi  15% 

Petrol Light Goods Vehicle  <1% 

Diesel Light Goods Vehicle  26% 

Diesel Bus 11%  

Diesel Artic Heavy Goods Vehicle 20%  

Diesel Rigid Heavy Goods Vehicle 17%  

Total proportion of road traffic emissions 48% 52% 

11.11 This demonstrates that 89% of all road traffic emissions for fine 

particles (PM10) can be attributed to diesel vehicles, with the 

remaining 11% linked to petrol vehicles. 

11.12 Whilst motorcycles are predicted to emit relatively large amounts of PM10 

(the predicted exhaust emissions factor is large) motorcycle numbers are 

low. 

                                            
79

 EDB ref20,12b Page 94



1
2

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 A

ir
 Q

u
a

li
ty

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
s

 

1
2
.1

 
T

h
e
 A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
5
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 W

o
rk

in
g
 

G
ro

u
p

. 

1
2
.2

 
T

h
e
 c

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 p
la

n
, 

w
h
o
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 a

c
ti
o
n
 a

re
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

b
e
lo

w
: 

V
is

io
n

: 
J
e
re

m
y
 W

ig
h
t,
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

: 
S

im
o
n
 G

re
e
n
, 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r,
 P

la
c
e
 P

o
rt

fo
lio

 

A
c

ti
o

n
S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 C

h
a

m
p

io
n

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

 C
h

a
m

p
io

n
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 1

: 
A

s
s
e

s
s
 f

e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
a

 L
o

w
 E

m
is

s
io

n
 

Z
o

n
e

 

L
e

s
 S

tu
rc

h
; 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

O
g

o
 O

s
a

m
m

o
r;

 A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 2

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

re
fu

e
lli

n
g

 l
o

w
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 

A
n

d
y
 N

o
la

n
; 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

rk
 D

a
ly

; 
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 3

: 
P

ro
m

o
te

 s
m

a
rt

e
r 

tr
a

v
e

l 
c
h

o
ic

e
s
 

D
ic

k
 P

ro
c
to

r;
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

G
re

g
 C

h
a

lli
s
; 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 4

: 
Im

p
ro

v
e

 e
n

g
in

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
d

ie
s
e

l 
v
e

h
ic

le
s
 

N
e

il 
D

a
w

s
o

n
; 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 
S

te
v
e

 A
s
h

; 
A

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 5

: 
M

it
ig

a
te

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 M
1

 m
o

to
rw

a
y
 

(p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 T

in
s
le

y
 A

re
a

) 

J
o

h
n

 B
a

n
n

; 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 &
 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

O
g

o
 O

s
a

m
m

o
r;

 A
ir

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 

A
d

a
m

 S
w

if
t;

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 O
ff

ic
e

r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 6

: 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

 p
o

lic
ie

s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
ir

 

q
u

a
lit

y
 

G
ra

h
a

m
 W

it
h

e
rs

; 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r,

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

C
h

ri
s
 H

e
e

le
y
; 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 T

e
a

m
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
a

n
d

 E
m

m
a

 W
ill

s
; 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
ff

ic
e

r 

A
c
ti
o

n
 7

: 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
in

d
u

s
tr

ia
l 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 

Ia
n

 A
s
h

m
o

re
; 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 

J
o

 T
e

rr
y
; 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

4
5
 

Page 95



13 Appendix 3 - Low Emissions Zone Feasibility Study 

13.1 This feasibility study is currently underway.  The following summarises 

some of the initial findings and considerations. 

13.2 A low emission strategy provides a package of measures to reduce the 

air quality and climate change impacts of emissions associated with road 

transport. The aim is to promote measures which result in the reduction 

of emissions, and accelerate the uptake of emissions reduction 

technologies, including low emissions vehicles and fuels. 

13.3 Various possibilities exist for implementing a Low Emission Zone, 

including through enforceable restrictions and voluntary partnerships.  

Many cities across Europe have opted for these Zones as a means of 

controlling vehicle emissions. Previous studies80,81 have demonstrated 

that the most common vehicles to target in a scheme with enforceable 

restrictions are commercial diesel powered Heavy Duty Vehicles due to 

their cost-effectiveness compared to schemes that would restrict other 

vehicle types. 

13.4 Modelling results show that across the City as a whole about 50% of 

nitrogen oxide (NOx) emissions are from road traffic and of this about 

20% is from buses. In addition fine particles (PM10) emissions from road 

transport (including contributions from re-suspension) make up 40% of 

emissions across the City, with about 10% of these being from buses. In 

some locations in the city centre, which are affected by high levels of 

nitrogen dioxide, bus traffic predominates. 

13.5 It is felt that at this time in Sheffield the most appropriate way to achieve 

air quality improvements may be by agreement with bus operators 

through a partnership scheme. This would involve investment from the 

bus companies, City Council and Passenger Transport Executive to 

improve the environmental performance of the fleet. 

13.6 Stagecoach has recently announced that it will introduce a fleet of 1982 

hybrid electric buses (with regenerative braking) onto the Sheffield 52 

route in early 2013.  This follows a successful bid for part funding of new 

low carbon vehicles from the Governments Green Bus Fund. The 52 

service carries around 3 million passengers per year and runs between 

Hillsborough, Crookes, Attercliffe, Darnall and Woodhouse. 

13.7 Air Quality Prediction Modelling to demonstrate potential air quality 

improvements from the Zone will be carried out in 2012 / 2013 (and 

possibly 2013 / 2014) funded by DEFRA Air Quality Grant. 

                                            
80

 Feasibility Study on a Low Emission Zone for Sheffield, 2006.AEA Energy and Environment. 
81

 Low Emission Zones in Europe, Sadler Consultants 
www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/scienceresearch/orresearch/lez/  
82

 http://assets.dft.gov.uk/publications/green-bus-fund-round3/green-bus-fund-round-3-
winners.pdf 

46 

Page 96



13.8 In addition to emissions reductions related to a Low Emission Zone, a 

City Centre Low Emission Strategy for Sheffield would consider 

emissions related to freight, taxis and private cars. 

13.9 A South Yorkshire Freight Quality Partnership has now been established 

which has an agreed Freight Action Plan that includes an action to 

develop freight route mapping from the strategic network for individual 

industrial areas, taking account of air quality management areas, as well 

as to develop a web site for freight information within South Yorkshire 

with links to other sites such as Eco Stars. 

13.10 The City Council is currently working to progress the commitment for 

100% low floor buses which will get higher Euro Star engines in place. 

Anti idling campaign 

13.11 This aims to reduce the numbers of public transport vehicles leaving their 

engines running when stationary. The South Yorkshire Passenger 

Transport Executive are working with bus companies to formulate a 

voluntary strategy to reduce vehicle idling 83. Currently there is an anti-

idling agreement in place at bus stations.  

                                            
83

 Bus idling and emissions, www.pteg.net/Publications/Reports.htm  

47 

Page 97



14 Appendix 4 - Upgrading vehicles to low emissions fuels 

14.1 Alongside developing an infrastructure for refuelling low emissions 

vehicles, it will be necessary to support the uptake of new technologies 

including hybrid, gas and electric. This will be addressed in a feasibility 

study.  

14.2 Heavy diesel vehicles (buses and lorries) make up 7% of total traffic, but 

create 70% of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and 48% of fine particles (PM10) 

emitted from road traffic. These emissions could be significantly reduced 

(see Table 11) by upgrading these vehicles.  This can be achieved in 

three ways:  

1. Biogas could potentially reduce NOx emissions from the transport 

sector overall by 56% (2,240 / 4000 tonnes).  There would also be no 

PM10 emitted from the vehicles which have been upgraded. 

2. Hybrid could potentially reduce NOx emissions from the transport 

sector overall by 17% (700 / 4000 tonnes). 

3. Better than Euro V emission standards by retrofitting Eminox 

Selective Catalytic Reduction Technology (SCRT) could potentially 

reduce NOx emissions from the transport sector overall by 62% 

(2464 / 4000 tonnes). There would also be a 77% PM10 reduction. 

Table 11 Reduction in nitrogen dioxide (NO2) emissions from 

road traffic84 by upgrading to alternative fuels 

Source

Proportion
of NOx 

Emissions
(%) 

Proportion
of NOx 

Emissions
(Tonnes)

Emission
reduction

upgrading to 
Biogas

(Tonnes)

Emission
reduction

upgrading to 
Hybrid  

(Tonnes)

Emission
reduction

upgrading to 
better than 
Euro V std 
(Tonnes)

Petrol Motorcycle <1% <40 N/A N/A N/A 

Petrol Car / Taxi 17% 680 -374   

Diesel Car / Taxi 6% 240 -192 -60 -211

Petrol LGV <1% <40 -<22 <10  

Diesel LGV 5% 200 -160 -50 -176 

Diesel Bus 19% 760 -608 -190 -669

Diesel Artic HGV  26% 1,040 -832 260 915

Diesel Rigid HGV  25% 1,000 -800 -250 -880
      

Total heavy vehicles  70% 2,800 -2,240 -700 -2,464 

Total light vehicles  30% 1,200    
      

Total Diesels 81% 3,240 -2592 -810 -2851

Total Petrol 19% 760 418 418 669 

 

                                            
84

 Road traffic accounts for 50% of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) equivalent to 4,000 tonnes per year 

48 

Page 98



14.3 The potential level of investment needed to achieve this is significant.  

For example, each bus (a new standard Double Decker) upgrade would 

cost £230,000 per vehicle for Biogas, £280,000 for Hybrid, in addition to 

the costs of providing appropriate Refuelling Infrastructure. Also, each 

existing bus conversion would cost: 

  £45,000 – £50,000 per vehicle for Biogas 

  £5,000 per vehicle for NOx only retrofitting SCRT  

  £10,000 per vehicle for NOx and PM10 retrofitting SCRT, in addition to 

a £200 annual maintenance cost.   

49 

Page 99



15 Appendix 5 - Traffic Flow 

15.1 The Department for Transport's data shows the growth in traffic (in terms 

of total vehicle kilometres travelled) in Sheffield District is reflected 

nationally and to a somewhat greater level across South Yorkshire as a 

whole.  

Figure 9 DfT Estimated Traffic Flows (in Vehicle Kilometres) for 

All Motor Vehicles, Sheffield District 1993 - 2010 

DfT Estimated Traffic Flows for All Motor Vehicles, Sheffield

2,250

2,300

2,350

2,400

2,450

2,500

2,550

2,600

2,650

2,700

2,750

2,800

1992 1996 2000 2004 2008 2012

M
il
li
o
n
 V

e
h
ic

le
 K

il
o
m

e
tr

e
s

 
Source: Department for Transport's National Road Traffic Survey (outside the scope of National Statistics) 

Figure 10 DfT Estimated Traffic Flows (in Vehicle Kilometres) for 

Cars, Sheffield District 1993 - 2010 

DfT Estimated Traffic Flows for Cars, Sheffield

1,850

1,900

1,950

2,000

2,050

2,100

2,150

2,200

1992 1996 2000 2004 2008 2012

M
il

li
o

n
 V

e
h

ic
le

 K
il
o

m
e

tr
e

s

Source: Department for Transport's National Road Traffic Survey (outside the scope of National Statistics) 

 

50 

Page 100



Figure 11 DfT Estimated Traffic Growth (in Vehicle Kilometres) for 

All Motor Vehicles, Sheffield District 1993 - 2010 

DfT Estimated Traffic Growth for All Motor Vehicles, Sheffield

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

1.20

1.25

1.30

1992 1996 2000 2004 2008 2012

M
il

li
o

n
 V

e
h

ic
le

 K
il
o

m
e
tr

e
s

"England" "Sheffield" "South Yorkshire"

 
Source: Department for Transport's National Road Traffic Survey (outside the scope of National Statistics) 

 

Figure 12 DfT Estimated Traffic Growth (in Vehicle Kilometres) for 

Cars, Sheffield District 1993 - 2010 

DfT Estimated Traffic Growth for Cars, Sheffield

0.95

1.00

1.05

1.10

1.15

1.20

1.25

1992 1996 2000 2004 2008 2012

M
il
li
o

n
 V

e
h

ic
le

 K
il
o

m
e

tr
e

s

"England" "Sheffield" "South Yorkshire

 
Source: Department for Transport's National Road Traffic Survey (outside the scope of National Statistics) 

 

15.2 It can be seen from the Council’s monitoring data below that in 2011 

overall traffic levels in the City Centre were very similar to those recorded 

in 1993.   

51 

Page 101



15.3 There are now fewer heavy diesel vehicles, such as lorries (Medium 

Goods Vehicles / Heavy Goods Vehicles) and buses, but more Cars / 

Taxis and light vans (Light Goods Vehicles) entering and leaving the City 

Centre. 

 Sheffield City Centre Annual Cordon (Vehicle Occupancy) Surveys  

Total 2 Way Weekday Flow (7am - 7pm) 

Table 12 Vehicle Trips by Mode of Travel 1993 - 2011 

Number of Vehicle 
Trips by Mode 

Motor
Cycle 

Car / 
Taxi

Light
Goods
Vehicle

Medium
Goods
Vehicle

Heavy 
Goods
Vehicle

Bus / 
Coach

Tram Total

1993 Urban Centre 2,245 220,571 31,133 7,533 8,816 14,223 N/A 284,521

1994 Urban Centre 2,212 232,827 33,332 8,135 8,374 13,926 N/A 298,806

1995 Urban Centre 2,250 241,753 33,368 7,828 8,614 13,634 615 308,062

1996 Urban Centre 2,113 245,473 34,370 8,177 8,365 12,705 627 311,830

1997 Urban Centre 2,060 238,726 33,639 7,352 7,663 12,403 676 302,519

1998 Urban Centre 1,824 238,983 33,025 7,290 7,980 11,916 691 301,709

1999 Urban Centre 2,092 237,576 31,855 7,204 7,332 11,409 664 298,132

2000 Urban Centre 2,016 239,302 32,948 7,067 7,300 11,057 676 300,366

2001 Urban Centre 2,400 242,541 32,785 7,084 7,432 11,058 674 303,974

2002 Urban Centre 2,578 240,522 32,632 6,727 7,773 11,001 688 301,921

2003 Urban Centre 2,480 244,302 33,142 6,692 7,251 10,350 668 304,885

2004 Urban Centre 2,200 245,202 33,864 6,204 7,299 9,725 661 305,155

2005 Urban Centre 2,268 232,465 32,399 5,768 6,379 9,437 667 289,383

2006 Urban Centre 2,236 227,433 33,415 5,480 6,951 9,755 673 285,943

2007 Urban Centre 2,310 211,535 31,575 5,615 6,611 9,616 667 267,929

2008 Urban Centre 2,255 220,899 34,632 5,905 6,319 9,792 665 280,467

2009 Urban Centre 2,254 226,866 32,138 5,648 5,450 9,840 667 282,863

2010 Urban Centre 2,257 229,740 33,163 5,400 5,369 9,560 669 286,158

2011 Urban Centre 2,163 224,093 33,266 5,326 4,524 9,469 663 279,504

Source: Sheffield City Council Monitoring Data 

Note: 2005 / 2006 / 2007 affected by Northern Inner Relief Road / Sheaf Square 

Construction 

52 

Page 102



53 

Table 13 Proportion of Vehicle Trips by Mode 

Proportion of 
Vehicle Trips by 
Mode

Motor
Cycle 

Car / 
Taxi

Light
Goods
Vehicle

Medium
Goods
Vehicle

Heavy 
Goods
Vehicle

Bus / 
Coach

Tram Total

1993 Urban Centre 0.8% 77.5% 10.9% 2.6% 3.1% 5.0% N/A 100.0% 

1994 Urban Centre 0.7% 77.9% 11.2% 2.7% 2.8% 4.7% N/A 100.0% 

1995 Urban Centre 0.7% 78.5% 10.8% 2.5% 2.8% 4.4% 0.2% 100.0% 

1996 Urban Centre 0.7% 78.7% 11.0% 2.6% 2.7% 4.1% 0.2% 100.0% 

1997 Urban Centre 0.7% 78.9% 11.1% 2.4% 2.5% 4.1% 0.2% 100.0% 

1998 Urban Centre 0.6% 79.2% 10.9% 2.4% 2.6% 3.9% 0.2% 100.0% 

1999 Urban Centre 0.7% 79.7% 10.7% 2.4% 2.5% 3.8% 0.2% 100.0% 

2000 Urban Centre 0.7% 79.7% 11.0% 2.4% 2.4% 3.7% 0.2% 100.0% 

2001 Urban Centre 0.8% 79.8% 10.8% 2.3% 2.4% 3.6% 0.2% 100.0% 

2002 Urban Centre 0.9% 79.7% 10.8% 2.2% 2.6% 3.6% 0.2% 100.0% 

2003 Urban Centre 0.8% 80.1% 10.9% 2.2% 2.4% 3.4% 0.2% 100.0% 

2004 Urban Centre 0.7% 80.4% 11.1% 2.0% 2.4% 3.2% 0.2% 100.0% 

2005 Urban Centre 0.8% 80.3% 11.2% 2.0% 2.2% 3.3% 0.2% 100.0% 

2006 Urban Centre 0.8% 79.5% 11.7% 1.9% 2.4% 3.4% 0.2% 100.0% 

2007 Urban Centre 0.9% 79.0% 11.8% 2.1% 2.5% 3.6% 0.2% 100.0% 

2008 Urban Centre 0.8% 78.8% 12.3% 2.1% 2.3% 3.5% 0.2% 100.0% 

2009 Urban Centre 0.8% 80.2% 11.4% 2.0% 1.9% 3.5% 0.2% 100.0% 

2010 Urban Centre 0.8% 80.3% 11.6% 1.9% 1.9% 3.3% 0.2% 100.0% 

2011 Urban Centre 0.8% 80.2% 11.9% 1.9% 1.6% 3.4% 0.2% 100.0% 

Note: 2005 / 2006 / 2007 affected by Northern Inner Relief Road / Sheaf Square Construction 

 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
CABINET – 11 JULY, 2012 – Minor Amendments to Report no. 11 – Air 
Quality Action Plan for Sheffield 
 
 
 
Page 12, Action 6 – Substitute the word “Predictable” for the word “Notable” 
in the second line of the first paragraph. 
 
 
Page 28, Paragraph 6.29 - Substitute the word “Predictable” for the word 
“Notable” in the penultimate line of the paragraph. 
 
 
Page 28, Paragraph 6.30 - Substitute the words “may open up the possibility 
of making gas vehicles for deliveries a condition of planning permission in 
some instances” for the words “that we could condition in planning 
applications” 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	8 Staff Retirements
	9 Bus Rapid Transit Northern Route (BRT North) : Approval for Compulsory Purchase Order Publication and Acquisition of Land
	10 Capital Programme Approvals 2012-13 (Month 1)
	11 Air Quality Action Plan for Sheffield
	Minor Amendments to Air Quality Action Plan


